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Important notes 

The board of directors and the directors of the Company hereby warrant that there are no 

mis-statements, misleading representations or important omissions in this report and shall take 

the individual and joint liability for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the contents 

hereof. 

 

Mr. Li Jindian, the board chairman & president of the Company, and Ms. Yu Hong, the chief 

accountant of the Company, hereby guarantee the financial statements in this annual report are 

true and complete. 

 

At the board meeting, Mr. Li Haiyang was absent for business reason. He authorized Mr. Li 

Jindian, the director of the Company, to exercise his voting right at the board meeting. 
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Chapter 1 Company Profile 

I.  Statutory name of the Company: 

In Chinese: ᾣ ᴍ Ὲ  

In English: LIAONING SG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD. 

 

II.  Legal representative of the Company: Li Jindian 

 

III.  Secretary of the board of directors: Na Tao 

Contact address:  50 Shuguang Road, Zhen‘an District, Dandong, Liaoning, 118001, P. R. 

of China. 

Tel̔ (00)86-415-4146825 

Fax̔ (00)86-415-4142821 

E-mail̔ dongban@chinasgaxle.com 

 

IV.  Registered address̔ 50 Shuguang Road, Zhen‘an District, Dandong, Liaoning, 118001, 

P.R. of China 

Office address̔ 50 Shuguang Road, Zhen‘an District, Dandong, Liaoning, 118001, P.R. of 

China. 

Internet website̔ www.sgautomotive.com 

E-mail address̔ shuguang@chinasgaxle.com 

 

V. Newspaper designated by the Company for information disclosure: China Securities 

Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily 

Internet website designated by China Securities Regulatory Commission for publishing 

Company‘s annual report: http://www.sse.com.cn  

The place where the annual report is prepared and placed: the office of the board of directors 

 

VI.  Stock exchange with which the Companyôs shares are issued: Shanghai Stock 

Exchange 

Stock abbr.: SHUGUANG STOCK  

Stock code: 600303 

 

VII.  Date of updated registration̔11
th
 December, 1995 

Place of registration̔ Dandong, Liaoning. 

Business license registration no.̔ 2106001110977 

Tax registration ID̔210604120109772 

Independent auditor̔ Beijing Zhongxingyu Certified Public Accountant Co., Ltd. 

Office address̔ room 818, 8
th
 floor, flat 88 of Beijing Capital Shidai Square office building, 

Chang‘an street, Xicheng district, Beijing, P. R. of China. 

 

http://www.sse.com.cn/
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Chapter 2 Financial Highlights  

 

I.  Gross profit and components in 2003 (the report year):  (unit: RMB yuan) 

Items Amount 

Total profit 151,815,631.27 

Net profit 93,840,058.94 

Net profit after non-current gain/loss 93,306,344.87 

Profit from main operating activities 393,970,703.10 

Profit from other operating activities 8,297,147.19 

Operating profit 141,955,787.11 

Income from investments 3,343,110.70 

Subsidize revenue 8,138,764.91 

Net income from non-operating activities -1,622,031.45 

Net cash flow from operating activities 272,814,308.06 

Increase (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 175,312,703.81 

 

Note: Items and amount after non-current gain/loss̔ (unit: RMB yuan) 

Items Amount 

Gain/loss from disposal of fixed assets -1,052,393.05 

Government subsidies 381,638.50 

Net income from non-operating activities -513,494.28 

Income tax influence after non-current gain/ loss -489.725.71 

Return back of depreciation reserves in previous years 2,435,520.60 

Gain/loss from liability reconsolidation -227,831.99 

Total 533,714.07 

 

II.  Financial data and guidelines of the recent three years:        (unit: RMB yuan) 

Items 2003 2002 2001 

Income from main operating activities 2,207978,274.94 672,580,247.63 348,834,007.22 

Net profit 93,840,058.94 37,117,660.96 34,727,984.75 

Total assets 2,088,555,426.51 1,542,649,856.85 922,387,595.75 

Shareholders equitŷexcluding 

minority‘s equitỹ  
535,050,970.97 472,736,562.11 466,425,383.00 

Earnings per share (diluted) 0.58 0.23 0.21 

(weighted) 0.58 0.23 0.26 

Net asset per share 3.30 2.92 2.88 

Net asset per share after adjustment 3.22 2.75 2.81 

Net cash flow per share from operating 

activities 
1.68 0.17 0.18 

Rate of return of net asset (%) (diluted) 17.54% 7.85% 7.45% 

(weighted

) 
18.82% 7.90% 7.63% 
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III.  Attached table for profit account 

Profit during  the report  year 
Rate of return from net assets Earnings per share 

Diluted Weighted Dilut ed Weighted 

Profit from main operating activities 73.63% 79.03% 2.43 2.43 

Operating profit 26.53% 28.48% 0.88 0.88 

Net profit 17.54% 18.82% 0.58 0.58 

Net profit after non-current gain/loss 17.44% 18.72% 0.58 0.58 

 

IV.  Changes in shareholdersô equity within the report year        (unit: RMB yuan) 

Items 

Beginning of 

the report 

year 

Increase in 

the report 

period 

Decrease in 

the report 

period 

End of the 

report year Reason for changes 

Share capital 162,000,000.00   162,000,000.00  

Capital reserve 234,982,441.33   874,349.12  235,856,790.45 
Earnings from liability 

reconsolidation 

Surplus reserve 20,907,878.07 16,692,925.90  37,600,803.97 Withdraw of the year 

Legal surplus   7,616,823.05 8,346,462.95  15,963,286.00 Withdraw of the year 

Free surplus reserve  1,642,568.26  1,642,568.26 Withdraw of the year 

Cash dividend to be 

distributed 
32,400,000.00 48,600,000.00 32,400,000.00 48,600,000.00 

Dividend distribution 

plan in 2003 

Profit retained 14,829,420.46 93,840,058.94 75,281,957.11 33,387,522.29 
Increase in net profit in 

2003 

Total shareholders 

equity 
472,736,562.91 169,996,365.17  107,681,957.11  535,050,970.97  
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Chapter 3 Changes in Equity and Shareholders Information 

I.  Changes in shareholdersô equity 

Table of changes in shareholders‘ equity                                unit: million shares 

 
Before 

changes 
Changeŝ ̅̆̇̃ 

After 

changes 

  
Allotted 

shares 

Distributed 

shares 

Transferred 

shares from 

reserve fund 

Increase 

issues in 

stock 

Others Subtotal  

I. Non-negotiable 

shares 

1. Promoter‘s shares  

 of which: 

State-owned shares 

Domestic corporate 

shares  

Overseas corporate 

shares 

Others 

2. Raised corporate 

shares 

3. Staff shares 

4. Preferred shares or 

others 

 Total non-negotiable 

shares 

II. Negotiable shares 

1. RMB Common 

shares 

2.Domestically listed 

foreign-capital shares 

3. Overseas listed 

foreign-capital shares  

4.Others 

Total negotiable shares 

 

 

69.75 

 

 

 

 

69.75 

 

 

 

 

20.25 

 

 

90 

 

 

72 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72         

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-20.25 

 

 

-20.25 

 

 

20.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-20.25 

 

 

-20.25 

 

 

20.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.25 

 

 

69.75 

 

 

 

 

69.75 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69.75 

 

 

92.25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

92.25 

III. Total shares 162       162 

 

II.  Particulars of the issuing and listing of shares 

According to the authority approval document No. [2000] 165 issued by China Securities 

Regulatory Commission, the Company made an IPO of 40 million RMB common shares at 

Shanghai Stock Exchange on 11
th
 Dec. 2000 at the price of 8.8 yuan per share. On 26

th
 Dec. 

2000, the 40 million RMB common shares were approved to be exchanged at Shanghai Stock 

Exchange. Among the 90-million share capital, 38.75 million are corporate shares, 11.25 

million are staff shares and 40 million are negotiable shares.  
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In May 2001, on basis of the 90 million shares, the Company distributed 8 shares for every 10 

shares held by the shareholders from the capital reserve. After the increase issues in stock, the 

Company‘s total share capital rose up to 162 million shares, including 69.75 million corporate 

shares, 20.25 million staff shares and 72 million negotiable shares.  

 

In December 2003 the 20.25 million staff shares were permitted to be exchanged at Shanghai 

Stock Exchange. Then the Company‘s 162-million total share capital included 69.75 million 

corporate shares and 92.25 million negotiable shares. 

 

III.  Shareholders information 

3.1 The total number of shareholders at the end of the report year: 25993.  

 

3.2 Particulars of the shareholding of the top 10 shareholders at the end of the report year: 

Rank Name of shareholders 

Annual 

increase & 

decrease 

in shares 

Shares 

held at the 

end of the 

report 

year 

Percentage 

of total 

share 

capital 

Share type 

1 
Dandong Shuguang Enterprise 

Group Co., Ltd. 
0 69750000 43.06 

Corporate 

shares 

2 

Bank of Communications — 

Haifutong Selected Security 

Investment Fund 

3000684 3000684 1.85 
Negotiable 

shares 

3 

Industrial & Commercial Bank of 

China — Deshengwenjian 

Security Investment Fund 

1918545 1918545 1.18 
Negotiable 

shares 

4 
National Social Security Fund 

106 Combination 
1837148 1837148 1.13 

Negotiable 

shares 

5 Guangfa Security Co., Ltd. 1524682 1524682 0.94 
Negotiable 

shares 

6 
National Social Security Fund 

105 Combination 
1004800 1004800 0.62 

Negotiable 

shares 

7 
Bank of Communications — 

Kerui Security Investment Fund 
969775 969775 0.60 

Negotiable 

shares 

8 

China Telecommunications & 

Electrical Power Development 

Co., Ltd. 

747082 747082 0.46 
Negotiable 

shares 

9 
Shanxi Provincial Investment 

Group (Co., Ltd.) 
674851 674851 0.42 

Negotiable 

shares 

10 
Shanghai Shenghan Investment 

Co., Ltd. 
670508 670508 0.41 

Negotiable 

shares 

 

Note: ŵ The shareholder who owned 5% or more of total shares in the report period is 

Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. (its original name was Dandong Shuguang 
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Axle Plant). It holds 69.75 million corporate shares at the end of the report year, which 

accounts for 43.06% of the Company‘s total share capital. There has been no change in the 

share-holding proportion in the report period. 

Ŷ There was no pledge or freeze on the shares held by Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group 

Co., Ltd. in the report period; the Company did not know whether there was any pledge or 

freeze on shares held by other top 10 shareholders. 

ŷ Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. did not have any relationship or unanimous 

actions with other 9 shareholders of the top 10. The Company did not know whether other 9 

shareholders of the top 10 had any relationship or unanimous actions. 

Ÿ The top 10 shareholders did not have any state-owned shares or foreign-capital shares. 

 

3.3 The holding shareholder of the Company: 

Name of the holding shareholder̔ Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 

Legal representative:  Mr. Li Haiyang 

Company type:  Limited Company. 

Date of establishment: 5
th
 July 2002. 

Registered capital:  96 million RMB. 

Scope of business:  manufacture & sales: automotive chassis, axles and related 

components. 

There has been no change in the holding company of the Company during the report period. 

 

3.4 There were no other corporate-share holders who held more than 10 % (including 10%) of 

the share capital in the report period. 

 

3.5 The top 10 negotiable-share holders at the end the report year: 

Rank Name of shareholders 

Shares held at 

the end of the 

year 

Percentage 

of total 

share capital 

(%)  

Type of 

share 

1 
Bank of Communications — Haifutong Selected 

Security Investment Fund 
3000684 1.85 A share 

2 
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China — 

Deshengwenjian Security Investment Fund 
1918545 1.18 A share 

3 National Social Security Fund 106 Combination 1837148 1.13 A share 

4 Guangfa Security Co., Ltd. 1524682 0.94 A share 

5 National Social Security Fund 105 Combination 1004800 0.62 A share 

6 
Bank of Communications — Kerui Security 

Investment Fund 969775 
0.60 A share 

7 
China Telecommunications & Electrical Power 

Development Co., Ltd. 747082 
0.46 A share 

8 Shanxi Provincial Investment Group (Co., Ltd.) 674851 0.42 A share 

9 Shanghai Shenghan Investment Co., Ltd. 670508 0.41 A share 

10 Tongde Security Investment Fund 548003 0.34 A share 
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Chapter 4 Particulars about Directors, Supervisors, Senior 

Executives and Employees 

I.  Directors, supervisors and senior executives 

1.1 Profile 

Name Sex Age Position Tenure 

Shares held 

at the     

beginning of 

the year 

Shares held 

at the end of 

the year 

Mr. Li Jindian Male 57 Chairman & President 2003.1-2006.1 22500 22500 

Mr. Li Dewu Male 50 Director & Vice President 2003.1-2006.1 18000 18000 

Mr. Li Haiyang Male 32 Director & Vice President 2003.1-2006.1 45000 45000 

Ms. Yu Hong Female 36 
Director & Chief 

Accountant 
2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Cao Anbin Male 44 Director 2003.1-2006.1 4500 4500 

Mr. Chen Ping Male 40 Director 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Qi Xiangquan Male 48 Independent director 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Zhang Dazhuang Male 64 Independent director 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Ms. Yang Yuemei Female 49 Independent director 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Wang Yonglin Male 53 Caller of supervisor meeting 2003.1-2006.1 4500 4500 

Mr. Yu Zengcai Male 50 Supervisor 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Sun Yongjun Male 35 Supervisor 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Han Baoming Male 51 Vice President 2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Hao Qingjun Male 38 Vice President 2003.10-2006.1 0 0 

Mr. Na Tao Male 39 
Secretary of the board of 

directors 
2003.1-2006.1 0 0 

 

Note: The shares held by directors, supervisors and senior executives have been fixed. 

Mr. Li Haiyang, the director, is the legal representative of holding company, Dandong 

Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 

 

1.2 Annual remuneration 

The subsidy for directors and supervisors is proposed by the Company and executed after the 

approval of the board of directors and the general meeting of shareholders. 

 

The salary, bonus and penalty for senior executives, such as general manager and vice general 

managers, are proposed by the Company and executed after the approval of the board of 

directors. 

 

The total amount of the annual remuneration for current directors, supervisors and senior 

executives is 1,442,600 RMB yuan; the total remuneration of the top 3 directors receiving the 

highest remuneration is 800,000 RMB yuan; the total remuneration of the top 3 senior 

executives receiving the highest remuneration is 800,000 RMB yuan. There are 2 persons 

receiving an annual remuneration of over 120,000 RMB yuan, 5 persons receiving an annual 
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remuneration between 60,000 to 120,000 RMB yuan, and 4 persons receiving an annual 

remuneration less than 60,000 RMB yuan. 

 

Directors who did not receive remuneration from the Company, or from shareholders‘ 

companies, or other related companies are: Mr. Zhang Dazhuang, Mr. Qi Xiangquan, Ms. Yang 

Yuemei and Mr. Chen Ping. 

 

The amount of annual subsidy given to each independent director by the Company is 20,000 

RMB yuan. 

 

1.3 In the report period, Mr. Hu Xiong, the Vice General Manager, was dismissed due to job 

change; the Company appointed Mr. Li Haiyang and Mr. Hao Qingjun as Vice Presidents of 

the Company; no President or Secretary of the board of directors were appointed or 

dismissed. 

 

II.  Employees 

As of 31
st
 December 2003, the Company had 1120 employees registered at the headquarter in 

total, including 762 production employees, 78 sales employees, 105 technical employees, 12 

financial employees and 163 administrative employees. 

 

Among the registered employees, 130 hold undergraduate degrees or above, 115 are graduates 

from colleges, and 875 have education of technical secondary school. 

 

The Company had 41 retired employees, all of whom have taken part in social insurance 

program. The company did not undertake any expenses. 
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Chapter 5 Corporate Governance 

I.  Corporate governance 

The Company strictly complies with the requirements of ―Corporate Law‖, ―Security Law‖, 

―Management Provisions for Public Listed Companies‖, ―Rules for Share Listing at Shanghai 

Stock Exchange‖ and the relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. 

Moreover, the Company made continuous improvement on corporate governance, set up 

modern enterprise system, and standardized its operation and organizational behavior. Based 

on the Discussion Regulations at the Three Meetings, Work Specifications for General 

Manager, Work Specifications for Secretary of the board of directors, and Management System 

for Information Disclosure, the Company set up the Management System for Investors‘ 

Relationship. By the end of the report period, there had been no differences between the 

Company‘s actual corporate governance and the requirements of China Securities Regulatory 

Commission. 

 

II.  Performance of independent directors 

The 4
th
 Session of Board Meeting designated 3 independent directors among the 9 directors. In 

the report period, the independent directors complied with requirements of the Guidance on 

Independent Director Program of Public Listed Company and the Company‘s Constitution, 

followed the principle of honesty and diligence, performed their responsibilities 

wholeheartedly, carefully reviewed each proposal of the general shareholders meeting and the 

board meeting, and made objective, fair and scientific advice and suggestions on various 

decisions. The efforts of independent directors made the decisions made by the board meeting 

more objective and scientific, improved the standardization of operations, and protected the 

legal rights and benefits of small and medium shareholders. 

 

III.  The publicity of the Companyôs and the holding shareholderôs business operation, HR, 

assets, management, finance and etc.: 

 Independence of businesses: The holding company and its subsidiaries did not engage in 

the same business as the Company. The Company has been separated from its controlling 

shareholder in business operation and has the ability to operate independently. 

 Independence of people: The Company has been separated from the holding company in 

labor, personnel, salary management and other aspects, and has got its independent labor & 

personnel division. The Company‘s managers, financial chiefs, sales chiefs and secretary of the 

board of directors have not taken any other positions besides directors in the holding company. 

 Independence of assets: The Company has set up a complete and independent system in 

production, supply and sales, and formed a clear relationship with the holding company in 

operation right and ownership. There has been no instance that the Company provides 

guarantee with its assets, equity or reputation for the holding company or the holding 

company‘s subsidiaries, or that the Company‘s assets are employed by the holding company for 

free. The Company is able to make various operations independently with its own assets, 

without any limits. 

 Independence of management: The Company‘s board of directors, supervisory committee 

and other internal organizations are able to operate independently. There are no 

controlling/controlled relationship between the Company‘s functional departments and the 
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holding company‘s functional departments. 

 Independence of finance: The Company has set up complete financial and accounting 

management system independently, opened separate account in bank and paid tax by law 

independently. 

 

IV.  Evaluation & incentive systems for senior executives 

The board of directors evaluates the performance of senior executives by year, and 

accordingly cash in the annual remuneration and adjusts their annual remuneration and 

position for the next year. In order to improve the work efficiency, sense of responsibility 

and initiative of the senior executives, the Company will set up more scientific, rational and 

effective evaluation system to promote the organic combination between senior executives 

and the Company‘s economic performance and operation achievements, so as to maximize 

the value of the Company and actualize the objective of continuous development.  
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Chapter 6 General Meeting of Shareholders 

In 2003, the Company held two general meetings of shareholders, an annual general meeting of 

shareholders and a temporary shareholders meeting. The details are as follows: 

 

I.  On 1
st
 March 2003, the 2002 annual general meeting of shareholders was held at the 

conference room of the Company. 4 shareholders and representatives of shareholders 

attended the meeting, representing 69.8175 million shares that accounted for 43.1% of 

Companyôs total share capital. The meeting was presided by Mr. Li Jindian , the board 

Chairman. Through votes by public ballot, the following resolutions were made at the 

meeting:  

1.1 2002 work report of the board of directors 

1.2 2002 work report of the supervisory committee  

1.3 2002 work report of chairman  

1.4 2002 financial statement report 

1.5 2002 financial budget report  

1.6 2002 profit distribution plan 

1.7 The resolution for investment on national bonds with idle capital raised. 

1.8 2002 annual report and summary. 

1.9 The resolution that the Company meets the requirements for issuing allotted shares 

1.10 The resolution for issuing allotted shares for the Company in 2003. 

1.11 The feasibility report on projects to be invested on with the capital collected through 

issuing allotted shares. 

1.12 The explanations to the usage of former collected capital. 

1.13 The resolution for continuously hiring Zhongxingyu CPA Co., Ltd. 

 

The announcement of the resolutions of the shareholders general meeting was published in 

China Securities Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily of 4
th
 March 2003. 

 

II.  On 22
nd

 September 2003, the 1
st
 temporary shareholders meeting was held at the 

Companyôs conference room. 5 directors and representatives of shareholders attended 

the meeting, representing 69.91875 million shares that accounted for 43.16% of the 

Companyôs total share capital. The meeting was presided by Mr. Li Jindian , the board 

Chairman. Through votes by public ballot, the following resolutions were made at the 

meeting: 

 

1. The resolution for changing the investment on technical innovation project of steering 

knuckle with collected capital. 

2. The resolution for changing the Company‘s name. 

 

The announcement of resolutions of the shareholders general meeting was published in China 

Securities Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily of September 23, 2003. 
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Chapter 7 Report of the Board of Directors 

 

I.  Discussion and analysis of the operating activities during the report period 

Following its operating policy of ―grasping historical opportunity, consolidating resources, 

speeding up international cooperation, enhancing development and achieving the target‖ in 

2003, the Company made adjustments to the market and products on time and achieved an 

initial form of four business segments: CBU (complete built-up), axles, components and 

automobile trading. The Company has put great efforts on market expansion and new product 

development, and has built the product categories such as car suspension beam, SUV axle, 

MPV axle and other series of axle products, and SUV products series and large-sized bus & 

coach products series; Huanghai Company has successfully implemented SG‘s management 

concept, adopted renovation in its organizational structure, HR system and distribution system, 

developed medium & high-end long distance tourist coach and city bus with front low entrance, 

and increased the competitive competence of its products. The Company has speeded up JV 

and cooperation progress, and passed through the PPAP of Eaton Corp. USA. Its products 

entered North American market. SG Huanghai has successfully signed MOU with Hungary 

Raba Company on the establishment of a joint venture company producing bus & coach axles. 

The Company upgraded the quality system from a passive position to an active position, 

promoted the complete quality improvement and increased the quality of actual components. 

The PPM values of each share-held subsidiary have improved significantly. 

 

The Company achieved a revenue of 220.7978 million RMB yuan from main operating 

activities in 2003, which increased by 228.3% compared with last year. The main reasons are:  

 

ŵ The basic periods of consolidated reports are different. The revenue of 2002 only covers 

Huanghai‘s revenue in December and the revenue of Shuguang Automobile Trading 

Company from August to December, while the revenue of 2003 includes the whole year‘s 

revenue. The increased revenue is 89.867 million RMB yuan that accounts for 58.5% of 

total increase of revenue. 

 

Ŷ The sales amount is increasing. The profit from main operating activities is 393.97 million 

RMB yuan that increases by 160.8% compared with last year, mainly because of the sales 

increase by 228.3%. The net profit is 93.84 million RMB yuan that increases by 152.82% 

compared with last year, mainly because of the increase of revenue and profit from the main 

operating activities. 

 

II.  Business operation during the report period 

2.1 Scope of main businesses and operations 

The main operating activities of the Company are to manufacture and market automotive front 

and rear axles, chassis, auto components, buses and coaches, which fall under the activities of 

auto components and bus manufacturing industry. 

 



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 15 

2.1.1 The constitution of revenue and costs of main operating activities by products: 

                                                    Unit̔RMB yuan 

Descriptions  
Revenue from main 

operating activities 

Costs of main 

operating activities 

Margin 

(%) 

Axles 488,947,171.56 372,901,199.72 23.73 

Brakes 149,046,961.41 104,303,559.38 30.02 

Auto components 25,681,714.80 17,896,147.00 30.30 

Huanghai buses, coaches and special-purpose vehicles 1,371,396,608.84 1,136,315,660.58 17.14 

Sales of other vehicles 163,258,089.80 157,083,196.88 3.78 

Vehicle repair 9,647,728.53 7,739,463.52 19.78 

 

2.1.2 The constitution of revenue and costs of main operating activities by regions: 

2.1.2.1 Revenue from main operating activities                          Unit̔RMB yuan 

Items 2003  2002 

Dandong area   2,052,107,942.95  515,600,412.30 

Xinxiang area     178,227,719.91  133,592,232.57     

Sub-total   2,230,335,662.86  649,192,644.87 

Offset among the subsidiaries     117,786,654.33      42,468,964.04 

Total   2,112,549,008.53  606,723,680.83 

 

2.1.2.2 Costs of main operating activities                                    Unit̔RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002  

Dandong area      1,708,882,261.58  415,406,361.13 

Xinxiang area        125,246,589.76     89,381,149.68  

Sub-total   1,834,128,851.34  504,787,510.81 

Offset among the subsidiaries      120,721,120.43     41,862,200.81 

Total   1,713,407,730.91  462,925,310.00 

 

2.1.3 The products that achieve 10% or above revenue and profit from main operating 

activities during the report period̔                              Unit̔RMB yuan 

Description 
Revenue from main 

operating activities 

Costs of main 

operating activities 

Margin 

(%) 

Axles 488,947,171.56 372,901,199.72 23.73 

Brakes 149,046,961.41 104,303,559.38 30.02 

Huanghai buses, coaches and special-purpose vehicles 1,371,396,608.84 1,136,315,660.58 17.14 

 

2.1.4 During the report period, the proportion of the sales revenue of axles & components 

reduced from 62.19% in the last year to 30.06% of this year, while the proportion of the 

sales revenue of CBU increased from 37.81% in the last year to 62.11% this year. 
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2.2 The operation and performance of major share-controlled subsidiaries and invested 

companies: 

 

   The Company owns 8 subsidiaries: Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd., Henan 

Provincial Automotive Brake Co., Ltd., Zhucheng SG Axle Co., Ltd., Fengcheng SG Axle 

Shaft Co., Ltd., Shandong Rongcheng SG Gear Co., Ltd., Dandong SG Special Purpose 

Vehicle Co., Ltd., Dandong SG Automobile Trading Co., Ltd. and Shanghai SG Manhattan 

Investment Company. 

 

   Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 220 million RMB, 51% 

of whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Dandong 

Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of automobiles 

(excluding cars), chassis and components. The total assets of the said company in 2003 

were 728,379,896.50 RMB yuan, with 11,239,065.40 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

   Henan Automotive Brake Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 30 million RMB, 51% of 

whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Henan Provincial 

Automotive Brake Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of auto brake 

assemblies and components. The total assets of the said company in 2003 were 

247,704,925.96 RMB yuan, with 18,857,223.86 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

   Zhucheng SG Axle Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 9.412 million RMB, 57.5% of 

whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Zhucheng SG Axle 

Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of automobiles, agricultural vehicle axles 

and components. The total assets of the said company in 2003 were 40,168,041.71 RMB 

yuan, with 2,984,042.15 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

   Fengcheng SG Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 54 million RMB, 90% of 

whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Fengcheng Axle 

Shaft Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of auto components. The total 

assets of the said company in 2003 were 102,859,247.98 RMB yuan, with 7,679,583.47 

RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

   Shandong Rongcheng SG Gear Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 31 million RMB, 67% 

of whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Shandong 

Rongcheng SG Gear Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of gears, auto 

components. The total assets of the said company in 2003 were 49,336,970.77 RMB yuan, 

with 1,877,371.49 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

Dandong SG Special-Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 10 million RMB, 

90% of whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Dandong 

SG Special-Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. covers the manufacturing and marketing of passenger 

refitted vehicles and chassis. The total assets of the said company in 2003 were 

314,586,657.20 RMB yuan, with 45,955,874.51 RMB yuan as net profit. 
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Dandong SG Automotive Trading Co., Ltd. has a registered capital of 11.8 million RMB, 

95% of whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Dandong 

SG Automotive Trading Co., Ltd. covers the import and export of various kinds of 

commodities and technology, wholesale and retail of automobiles (including cars), auto 

components, hardware & traffic electrical devices, household appliances, chemical products, 

car rental, car leasing, old motor vehicles deal and common goods transportation on its own 

accounts and as an agent. The total assets of the said company were 34,071,945.60 RMB 

yuan, with 1,389,662.74 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

Shanghai SG Manhattan Investment Company has a registered capital of 50 million RMB, 

90% of whose capital share is owned by the Company. The scope of business of Shanghai 

SG Manhattan Investment Company covers investment management, assets management 

and investment consultation. The total assets of the said company in 2003 were 

51,071,108.14 RMB yuan, with 1,082,811.08 RMB yuan as net profit. 

 

There is no case that the investment benefit of a single subsidiary can influence 10% or above 

of the net profit of the Company. 

 

2.3 Main suppliers and customers 

The total amount of purchase from the top 5 suppliers of the Company is 60.93 million RMB 

and accounts for 11.43% of the total purchase amount of the year. The total amount of sales to 

the top 5 customers is 417.35 million RMB and accounts for 18.90% of the total sales amount 

of the year. 

 

2.4 Problems and difficulties in operation and the solutions 

The rapid development of Chinese automotive industry has attracted various capital 

investments. The global automobile and components manufacturers are increasing their 

expansion in Chinese market. The competition becomes fiercer. Facing such changing market, 

the Company has taken some actions: 

 

2.4.1 Grasp the historical opportunity for the rapid development in automotive industry and 

the vitalizing of Northeast old industrial base, make in-time adjustments to product 

structure, develop new products and new market actively, and improve the Company‘s 

competitive competence. 

2.4.2 Enhance joint venture cooperation and seek technical support. 

2.4.3 Make technical innovations and keep continuous development. 

2.4.4 Reduce costs, improve quality, and upgrade management. 

 

III.  The investment of the Company 

3.1 The usage of raised capital during the report period 

   On 26
th
 December 2000, the Company issued shares and raised 338.16 million RMB and 

this sum of capital could be used continuously to this report period. By the end of 31
st
 

December 2003, the accumulated investment of the raised capital has been 302.83 million 

RMB. The details of investments are as follows: 
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 Unit: ten thousand RMB 

Total amount of the raised fund  33816 

The amount of raised fund used 

during the report period 
2051.2 

Total accumulated amount of raised 

fund used 
30283 

Promised project 

Amount 

to be 

invested 

Whether 

to 

change 

the 

project 

Actual 

investment 

Return 

from 

investment 

Is it in 

accordance 

with planned 

schedule and 

forecast return 

ľNinth-Five PlanĿaxle two-side machining project 7066 No 7066 4923 Yes 

Acquiring Dandong Huanghai Axle Co. and 518 Axle 

Co.  
8000 No 11220 1123.91 Yes 

Technical innovation of auto bevel gear production line 1366 No 1075.8 462 No 

Project with an annual production of 2.1 million-pcs 

brake pumps 
1762 No 1492.2 889.9 Yes 

Technical innovation of differentials 2950 Yes   
Has been 

changed 

Technical innovation of pliers-type brake 3243 No 0  No 

Technical innovation of axle shaft 2998 No 2998 409 No 

Technical innovation of steering knuckle 2995 Yes 1195 285.9 
Has been 

changed 

The establishment of Anhui Ankai Futian SG Axle Co., 

Ltd. 
  1800 333.05 Yes 

Replenish current capital 3436 No 3436  Yes 

Total 33816 ĺ 30283 8429.85 ĺ 

Explanations for not achieving planned schedule and 

benefit (distinguished by specific project) 

1. Auto bevel gear production line project: The normal 

production was delayed by the commissioning of imported 

equipments. In October 2002, the commissioning of imported 

equipments was finished and the bevel gears became one of the 

core components of axle. 

2. Technical innovation of axle shaft: In order to make sure the 

product meets the requirements for both international and 

domestic markets, the Company introduced the technical process 

from Korea Yuanguang Corporate, which delayed the production 

time. At present, this project has been completed and reached the 

target production volume. 

3. Technical innovation of pliers-type brake: This project was not 

carried out for the moment for market reasons. 
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Reasons for changes and explanations to the changed 

procedures (distinguished by specific project) 

1. The Company initially planned to acquire Dandong Huanghai 

Axle Company by the raised fund of 77.1 million RMB, and now 

has adjusted the investment scale and enlarged the purchasing 

range: The raised fund of 112.2 million RMB, was used to 

establish a joint venture company, Dandong Huanghai 

Automotive Co., Ltd., with Liaoning Huanghai Automobile 

(Group) Co., Ltd. (The old name is Dandong Automobile Works 

and hereafter will be abbreviated as Huanghai Group). This fund 

includes the fund to be used for acquiring Dandong Huanghai 

Axle Company and for the technical innovation of differentials, 

and the remaining fund of technical innovation project of auto 

bevel gear production line and the auto brake pumps project with 

an annual production of 2.1 million. Huanghai Group invested by 

operational assets. Huanghai Axle Company that the Company 

intended to acquire was also within Huanghai Group. This 

project was approved by the board of directors and the general 

meeting of shareholders. 

2. The Company initially planned to make technical innovation 

on steering knuckle with the raised fund of 29.95 million RMB. 

However, due to the delay of the projects held by coordinating 

suppliers, the steering knuckle failed to achieve the expected 

marketing objectives. In order to reduce the investment risk of 

the raised fund and to make profits from investment, after getting 

approved by the temporary shareholders general meeting held on 

28th June 2001, the Company determined to stop the technical 

innovation project of steering knuckle. Instead, the Company 

intended to set up a joint venture company, Sichuan Dujiang SG 

Machinery Co., Ltd., with Sichuan Dujiang Machinery Co., Ltd. 

After the set up of the joint venture, it did not achieve the 

expected operational objectives. Through negotiations, both 

parties agreed to terminate the JV and the Company withdrew all 

the investment in cash. After getting approved by the temporary 

shareholders general meeting held on 3rd September 2002, the 

Company invested on a joint venture company, Anhui Ankai 

Futian SG Axle Co., Ltd., with Anhui Ankai Automotive Group 

Co., Ltd. and Beiqi Futian Automotive Co., Ltd. with 18 million 

RMB, which is a part of the recalled fund from the termination 

of Sichuan Dujiang SG Machinery Co., Ltd. The change of the 

project has been approved by the board of directors and the 

general meeting of shareholders. 

 

3.2 The company did not make any other investment. 
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IV.  Financial status 

 Unit̔RMB yuan 

Items 2003  2002  Increase or decrease% 

Total assets 2,088,555,426.51 1,542,649,856.85  35.39 

Shareholder‘s equity 535,050,970.97  472,736,562.91  21.5 

Profit from main operating activities 393,970,703.10  151,051,249.54  160.8 

Net profit 93,840,058.94   37,117,660.96  152.82 

Net increase of cash or equivalents 175,312,703.81  -101,254,611.27   

 

Reasons for changes̔  

(1) The profit from main operating activities increases because the sales revenue increases by 

228.3% compared with the same period in last year. 

(2) The net profit increases due to the increase of profit from main operating activities. 

(3) The net cash or equivalent increases because the revenue from main operating activities 

increases by 228.3% and the payable sales increase by a large extent. 

 

V. Routine work of the board of directors 

5.1 Board meetings and resolutions 

In 2003, four board meetings were held and the details and their resolutions are as follows: 

 

5.1.1 On 26
th
 January 2003, the 1

st
 session of the 4

th
 Board Meeting was held at the 

Company‘s conference room. Only 6 out of 9 directors took part in the meeting. The 

rest 3 directors authorized other directors in written form to vote for them. Through 

discussions, the directors agreed unanimously on the following resolutions:  

5.1.1.1 The resolution for voting for the Chairman of the Board of the 4
th
 Session;  

5.1.1.2 The resolution for adopting the work report of the board of directors;  

5.1.1.3 The resolution for adopting the work report of Chairman;  

5.1.1.4 The resolution for adopting 2002 financial statement report;  

5.1.1.5 The resolution for adopting 2003 financial budget report;  

5.1.1.6 The resolution for reviewing 2002 profit distribution plan;  

5.1.1.7 The resolution for making investment on national bonds with idle fund raised;  

5.1.1.8 The resolution for adopting 2002 annual report and its summary 

5.1.1.9 The resolution for appointing senior executives 

5.1.1.10 The resolution for 2003 remuneration distribution and award methods on executives;  

5.1.1.11 The resolution that the Company meets the requirements for issuing allotted shares;  

5.1.1.12 The resolution for adopting the preplan on issuing allotted shares;  

5.1.1.13 The feasibility report on projects to be invested with the capital collected through 

issuing allotted shares;  

5.1.1.14 The resolution for making explanations to the usage of former collected capital;  

5.1.1.15 The resolution for continuously hiring Zhongxingyu CPA Co., Ltd.;  

5.1.1.16 The resolution for holding 2002 shareholders general meeting. 

 

The announcement of the resolutions of the shareholders general meeting was published in 

China Securities Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily of 29
th
 January 2003. 
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5.1.2 On 21
st
 April 2003, the 2

nd
 session of the 4

th
 Board Meeting was held and votes were 

made through telecommunicating methods. The resolution for reviewing the report of 

the 1
st
 quarter of 2003 was approved. 

 

The resolution of this meeting was published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily of 23
rd
 April 2003. 

 

5.1.3 On 18
th
 August 2003, the 3

rd
 session of the 4

th
 Board Meeting was held and votes were 

made through telecommunicating methods on the following resolutions:  

5.1.3.1 The resolution for changing the investment on the technical innovation of steering 

knuckle with the raised fund;  

5.1.3.2 The resolution for reviewing the report of the 1
st
 half year of 2003;  

5.1.3.3 The resolution for changing the Company‘s name;  

5.1.3.4 The resolution for holding the 1
st
 temporary shareholder general meeting in 2003. 

 

The resolutions of this meeting were published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily of 20
th
 August 2003. 

 

5.1.4 On 23
rd
 October 2003, the 4

th
 session of the 4

th
 Board Meeting was held and votes were 

made through telecommunicating methods on the following resolutions:  

5.1.4.1 The resolution for reviewing the management regulations on investors relationship of 

Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd.;  

5.1.4.2 The resolution for reviewing the report of the 3
rd
 quarter of 2003;  

5.1.4.3 The resolution for appointing Mr. Li Haiyang and Mr. Hao Qingjun as Vice Presidents 

of the Company;  

5.1.4.4 The resolution for dismissing the Vice President. 

 

The resolutions of this meeting were published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily of 27
th
 October 2003. 

 

5.2 The execution of the resolutions of the general shareholders meetings 

5.2.1  According to the 2002 profit distribution plan reviewed and approved by the general 

shareholders meeting, on basis of the 162-million total share capital as of the end of 

2002, the board of directors issued dividend of 2 yuan (including tax) for every 10 

shares to all the shareholders. The announcement of the Company‘s distribution of 

dividends was published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily of 8
th
 

April 2003. The date of registration of equity was 11
th
 April 2003. The right and interest 

relief date was 14
th
 April 2002 and the date of granting of dividend in cash was 18

th
 

April 2002.  

5.2.2  The board of directors also implemented two resolutions, the resolution for changing 

the Company‘s name and the resolution for changing the investment on the technical 

innovation of steering knuckle with the raised fund. 
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VI.  Preplans for profit distribution and for the conversion of reserve fund into share 

capital 

As audited by Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd., the net profit in 2003 consolidated financial 

statement is 93,840,058.94 RMB yuan. 10% of the net profit̆ 16,692,925.90 RMB yuan, is to 

be set aside for legal surplus common reserve fund; 5% of the net profit, 8,346,462.95 RMB 

yuan, is to be set aside for legal public welfare fund; 1,642,568.26 RMB yuan is to be 

withdrawn as free surplus reserves; and the profit retained from the previous year is 

14,829,420.46 RMB yuan. The total distributable profit to shareholders is 81,987,522.29 RMB 

yuan. 

 

The resolution for distribution is as follows: 

 

On basis of the 162 million shares as of the end of 2003, the Company issues dividend of 3 

yuan (including tax) for every 10 shares. The total cash distribution is 48.6 million RMB 

(including tax). After dividend distribution the balance of profit retained is 33,387,522.29 RMB 

yuan. The common reserve fund is not transferred to share capital. 

 

This resolution for profit distribution needs to be reviewed and approved by the general 

shareholders meeting of 2003. 

 

VII.  Other issues 

 The Company will  continue to disclose information in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily. 

 

 Special explanations by CPA on capital occupancy by holding shareholders and related 

parties 

According to the ―notice on the standardization of the capital transfer between public listed 

companies and the related parties and on the issues on external guarantee‖ (hereafter 

abbreviated as the Notice), Beijing Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd. produced Zhongxingyu 

(2004) No.1021, the ―special explanations on capital occupancy by big shareholders and 

related parties and the guarantee against the rules for Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., 

Ltd.‖. The accountant stated: By 31
st
 December 2003, apart from the capital transfer for 

normal operation between SG Stock and the related parties, no capital occupancy against 

rules as specified in the Notice by holding shareholders of SG Stock and the related parties 

has been found; no guarantee made by SG Stock and its share-controlled subsidiaries for the 

holding shareholders of SG Stock and their subsidiaries has been found. 

 

 Special explanations and independent comments on the external guarantee made by 

independent directors 

 

The independent directors agrees the Company has strictly complied with the provisions on 

external guarantee specified in the Company Constitution and there has been no external 

guarantee against the rules as specified in the Notice made by the Company and the 

share-controlled subsidiaries for holding shareholders and their subsidiaries. 
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Chapter 8 Report of the Supervisory Committee 

I.  The work of the supervisory committee 

During the report period the supervisory committee held two meetings. The details of the 

meetings are as follows: 

 

1.1 On 26
th
 January 2003, the 1

st
 session of the 4

th
 supervisors‘ meeting was held in the 

Company‘s conference room. The meeting reviewed and approved the following 

resolutions: 

 

1.1.1 The resolution for choosing a caller for the supervisors meeting 

1.1.2 The resolution for adopting 2002 work report of the supervisory committee 

1.1.3 The resolution for adopting 2002 annual report and its summary 

 

The resolutions of this meeting were published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily of 29
th
 January 2003. 

 

1.2 On 18
th
 August 2003, the 2

nd
 session of the 4

th
 supervisors‘ meeting was held in the 

Company‘s conference room. The meeting reviewed and approved the following 

resolution: 

 

The resolution for changing investment on the technical innovation of steering knuckle with 

the raised fund; 

 

The resolution of this meeting was published in China Securities Daily and Shanghai 

Securities Daily of 20
th
 August 2003. 

 

II.  The independent comments on relevant issues in 2003 by the supervisory committee 

2.1 The legal operation of the Company 

By law, the supervisory committee performed the supervision on the calling procedures and 

resolutions of the general shareholders meetings and the board meeting, the directors‘ 

implementation of the resolutions of the general shareholders meetings, and the performance 

of senior executives and the corporate governance. The supervisory committee concluded 

that the board of directors was able to strictly implement relevant laws and regulations 

through diligent work and scientific and appropriate operation and decisions. The board of 

directors set up and improved the internal management and control system. The directors 

and managers of the Company performed no act that violated laws, regulations and the 

Company Constitution or harmed the interests of the Company. 

 

2.2 The financial status of the Company 

Being responsible for all shareholders, the supervisory committee made careful and detailed 

examinations to the Company‘s financial system and status. The supervisory committee 

concluded that the auditor's report issued by Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd. on 2003 financial 

statement report of the Company objectively and truly reflected the financial status and 

operating results of the Company. 
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2.3 The Company changed one investment project according to the market and the relevant 

procedure. Other actual investment projects were the same as what promised. 

 

2.4 The Company transferred its equity at reasonable price and there have been no internal 

transactions or behaviors that could damage shareholders benefits or result in the 

Company‘s loss in assets. 

 

2.5 The related transactions of the Company were fair. There have been no damages to the 

benefit of public listed company and no internal transactions. 
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Chapter 9 Important Issues 

I.  The key lawsuits and arbitration in 2003 

The lawsuit case of Bolaily Mechanical Company disclosed in 2001 annual report 

identified that according to the agreement, Bolaily Mechanical Company should have paid 

off all the arrears by 31
st
 December 2003. By 31

st
 December 2003, there was still 

814,028.91 yuan unpaid and shall be continuously paid in 2004. 

 

The Company was not involved in any other important lawsuits or arbitration during the 

report period. 

 

II.  The Company neither acquired nor disposed of assets nor was involved in any 

takeover or merger in the report period. 

 

III.  Important related transactions 

All the transactions between the Company and related parties were made in accordance 

with the national provisions at a fair and reasonable price (see details in note 8 to financial 

statements). 

 

IV.  Important contracts and their performance 

 In the report year, the Company was not involved in any trust, contract or lease. 

 During the report year, there was no important guarantee contract. 

 The Company did not entrust others to manage its cash assets in the report period. 

 

V. In the report period̆the Company or shareholders holding over 5% of the total 

shares of the Company did not make any commitment on the selected newspapers 

or websites. 

 

VI.  During the report year the Company employed Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd. as its 

auditor. So far, Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd has provided services to the Company 

for 5 consecutive years. The remuneration paid by the Company to the above 

certified public accountants in the report year was 600,000 RMB. 

 

VII.  The Company and its directors and senior executives were not investigated by 

CSRC, administratively punished or publicly criticized by CSRC or publicly 

condemned by stock exchange. 

 

VIII.  Other important issues 

 The announcement on the change of the Company‘s name was published in China 

Securities Daily and Shanghai Securit ies Daily of 20
th
 August, 23

rd
 September and 9

th
 October 

2003. 

 The Company signed equity transfer agreement with Zhejiang Wanxiang System Co., Ltd. 

The agreement stipulated that 51% of equity of Henan Brake Company that was owned by the 

Company was transferred to Zhejiang Wanxiang System Co., Ltd at the intended price of 72 

million RMB. This resolution was reviewed and approved by the 5
th
 session of 4

th
 board 
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meeting. The resolution still needs to be reviewed and approved by the general shareholders 

meeting in 2003. 
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Chapter 10 Financial statements 

 

Ň. Auditorôs report 

                                  Zhongxingyû2004̃No. 1018 Audit 

 

To all the shareholders of Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd.: 

We have audited the attached balance sheet and the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
st
 

December 2003, the profit and profit distribution statement and the consolidated profit and 

profit distribution statement of 2003, the cash flow statement and the consolidated cash flow 

statement of 2003 of Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd. The preparation of these 

financial statements is the responsibility of the Company‘s management. Our responsibility is 

to comment on these financial statements based on our audit. 

 

We have conducted our audit in accordance with ―Independent Auditing Guideline of PRC 

Certified Public Accountant‖ so as to reasonably examine whether there are substantial mistakes 

in the statement or not. The audit includes examining and supporting the data in financial 

statements and the evidence disclosed by sampling, assessing the accounting principles used 

and significant estimates made by the management, and evaluating the overall presentation of 

the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

comments. 

 

We therefore conclude that the financial statements present fairly, in all important respects, the 

financial position of the Company as at 31
st
 December 2002 and the results of their operations 

and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the ―Standards for Corporate 

Accounting‖ and ―Accounting System for Incorporated Limited Liability Company‖.  

 

 

 

Zhongxingyu C.P.A. Co., Ltd.         PRC Certified Public Accountant: Shu Xin 

         

 PRC Certified Public Accountant: Wang Yong 

 

                           27
th

 Feb. 2003. Beijing Å China 
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ň. Financial statements (attached) 
 

ŉ. Notes to financial statements 

3.1 Introduction of the Company 

Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd. (hereafter abbreviated as the Company) was 

established on 2
nd

 March 1993 after the approval by the document Liaotigaifa [1993] No.5 

issued by Liaoning Provincial System Reform Commission. On 6
th
 December 2000, approval 

was given by China Securities Regulatory Commission in document Zhengjianfa [2000] 

No.165 on issuing an IPO of 40 million common shares at Shanghai Stock Exchange. The total 

equity of the Company was 90 million RMB.  

 

On 10
th
 May 2001, the 2000 profit distribution plan and the plan on increasing issues on stock 

by transferring capital reserve to equity were reviewed and approved by the general 

shareholders meeting. The Company distributed a dividend of 2 yuan for every 10 shares to all 

the shareholders of the 90 million shares by the 31
st
 December 2000. Meanwhile the Company 

increased issues of 8 shares for every 10 shares from capital reserve and the total increased 

shares reached 72 million. Accordingly, the total shares of the Company reached to 162 million 

and the registered capital was 162 million RMB.  

 

On 22
nd

 September 2003, approved by the temporary shareholders general meeting, the 

Company changed its name into Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd and altered the 

registered name on 29
th
 September 2003 at Dandong Municipal Industrial & Commercial 

Administration Management Bureau, receiving corporate business license with the registered 

No. of 2106002101767. The legal representative is Mr. Li Jindian.  

 

The main scope of business of the Company: manufacturing & machining automotive front and 

rear axles, chassis, and auto components; repairing (establishing sub-branches for automobiles 

and auto components sales); engaging in exportations of self-made products and relevant 

technology by the Company and its subsidiaries; engaging in imports of raw materials, 

mechanical equipments, machines & meters and related technology needed by the Company 

and its subsidiaries (except for the limited and forbidden imported commodities and 

technology); handling business of machining with imported raw materials and activities of 

machining as per drawings, samples, materials and compensation trade. 

 

3.2 Major accounting policies, accounting estimation and compilation methods for the 

consolidated financial statements 

3.2.1 Accounting system  

The Company implemented Corporate Accounting Standards, Corporate Accounting System 

and the relevant supplementary provisions of Finance Ministry. 

 

3.2.2 Accounting year 

The Company uses solar calendar year as a fiscal year, starting from 1
st
 Jan. ending at 31

st
 Dec. 

Information recorded in this report covers data from 1
st
 Jan. 2003 to 31

st
 Dec. 2003. 
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3.2.3 Accounting basis and pricing principles 

The financial statement of the Company relies on the occurrence of credit and liabilities, and is 

booked with credit and debit accounting method and priced at historical (actual) costs. 

 

3.2.4 Standard accounting currency 

The Company uses RMB as the standard currency for accounting. 

 

3.2.5 Accounting methods for foreign currency 

The economic business with non-standard accounting currency are translated into standard 

accounting currency at the exchange rate released by China People‘s Bank on the 1
st
 day of the 

month when the business takes place. At the end of the report period, the assets, credits and 

liabilities in foreign currency are translated into standard accounting currency at the exchange 

rate released by China People‘s Bank at that time. The difference between the book value of 

standard accounting currency and the exchanged value of the standard accounting currency at 

the exchange rate at the end of the report period is regarded as profit/loss of foreign currency 

exchange and is written in the profit and loss account of the period. The profit and loss during 

construction are written in the profit and loss account of the period at once in the month when 

operation/production starts. The profit and loss from foreign exchange of loans used for 

purchasing fixed assets or equivalents are dealt with according to the capitalization principle of 

borrowing expenses. The profit and loss produced after the delivery of fixed assets should be 

listed under the profit and loss account of the period. 

 

3.2.6 Standards for cash equivalents recognition 

According to the stipulation of ―Corporate Accounting Standards – Cash Flow Statement‖, the 

Company regards the short-term investments as the cash equivalents if they are due in 3 

months, of high-liquidating, cash-convertible at the known price and of low risk in value 

fluctuations. 

 

3.2.7 Accounting methods for short-term investments 

The short-term investments are priced according to the actual payment. If the received actual 

payment includes cash dividend announced or matured interest that have not been collected, 

they shall be separately listed under receivable accounts, but not as costs for short-term 

investments. 

 

During the holding period of the short-term investments, the received cash dividends or 

interests shall be regarded as the return of initial investment costs to offset the book value of 

short-term investments. The cash dividends or interests that have already been listed under 

receivable accounts are excluded.  

 

For short-term investments, the difference between the book value and actual received payment 

is regarded as investment profit or loss of the period. 

 

The short-term investments held by the Company are priced by comparing the costs and market 

price at the end of report period. The amount that the market price is lower than the costs is 

regarded as depreciation reserve for short-term investments and as the profit/loss of the period. 
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3.2.8 Accounting methods for bad debt 

Bad debts are accounted through bad debt reserve method. The Company makes complete 

checkup on accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and others) to predict the 

possible bad debts. According to the analysis on year-end balance of accounts receivable and 

the account age, the Company makes bad debt reserves. The percentage of bad debt reserves is 

as follows: 

 

Account age Percentage of bad debt reserves 

Within 1 year 1% 

1-2 years 10% 

2-3 years 15% 

Over 3 years 20% 

 

The Company adopted tracing collection method to collect the accounts receivable over 3 

months. Thus the accounts receivable within 1 year bear lower risk and the reserve percentage 

is made as 1%.  

 

The Company does not make bad debt reserves for accounts receivable from the companies 

covered in consolidated statements. 

 

The standard for bad debt recognition: If the debtor is bankrupt or dead and his assets after 

bankruptcy or legacy cannot cover the accounts receivable; or if debtor has not made its 

payment and there is strong evidence that the payment can not be repaid or there is less 

possibility of repayment, the mentioned debts can be considered as bad debt loss after 

approved by the board of directors. 

 

3.2.9 Accounting methods for inventory 

Company‘s inventory consists of raw materials, products in process, finished products, 

low-value consumption goods, outsourced commodities and etc. The purchase and use of raw 

materials are accounted at planned costs. The difference between actual price and planned costs 

is amortized to relevant accounting items monthly. The finished products are valued by their 

actual costs before being put into storage. The sales costs of shipped products are calculated by 

means of weighed averages. The costs of low-value consumption goods, except tooling and 

moulds, are amortized by the proportion of actual machining quantity to designed machining 

quantity. The rest are evaluated by 50% amortization. 

 

The confirmation and preparing methods for stock depreciation: The Company makes 

complete checkup on the stock at the end of the report period. Some costs of stock cannot be 

paid back due to damage, complete or partial obsolescence or the lower sale price than the 

costs. According to the principle of offsetting the book value of stock and the realized net value 
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of stock, the Company makes reserves for stock depreciation by items. 

 

3.2.10 Accounting methods for long-term investment 

3.2.10.1 Accounting methods for long-term equity investment 

a. Long-term equity investments include stock and other equity investments. The received 

actual costs of long-term equity investments shall be regarded as the initial costs. But the 

included cash dividends that have been announced but not collected shall not be listed 

under long-term equity investment costs. 

b. The Company adopts equity accounting method in the case when its investment amount 

accounts for 20% or more of the voting capital of the invested company, or the 

investment amount is less than 20% but the Company has significant influences on the 

invested company. The Company adopts cost accounting method in the case when its 

investment amount is below 20% of the voting capital of the invested company, or the 

investment amount accounts for 20% or more but the Company does not have significant 

influences on the invested company. When the investment amount accounts for over 50% 

of the voting capital (excluding 50%), the Company adopts equity accounting method and 

consolidates the financial statements of the invested company into its consolidated 

financial statements. 

c. When the Company disposes the long-term equity investment, the difference between the 

book value and the actual price is recognized as the investment profit or loss of the 

period. 

d. With equity accounting method, when the initial investment costs of a long-term equity 

investment is higher than the shareholder‘s equity that should have been entitled in the 

invested company, the difference should be listed as ―the difference of equity investment‖ 

and be amortized averagely in the period of investment and listed under profit and loss 

account. When the initial investment costs is less than the shareholder‘s equity that 

should have been entitled in the invested company, the difference should be listed under 

―capital reserve – reserve for equity investment‖. 

 

3.2.10.2 Accounting methods for long-term bond investment 

a. The costs of long-term bond investment is calculated according to the total amount 

actually paid when the investment is made, while the included cash dividends that have 

been announced but not collected are not listed under long-term bond investment costs. 

b. Interests of bonds are amortized under straight-line method during the period from bonds 

purchase date to the maturity date. 

c. When the Company disposes the long-term bond investment, the difference between the 

book value and actual income from it is considered as the investment profit and loss of 

the period. 

 

3.2.10.3 Reserves for long-term investment depreciation 

The reserves for long-term investment depreciation are made under entry-by-entry method. 

Due to continuous falling down of market price or bad operation of business, the receivables of 

long-term investment are lower than its book value. At the end of the report period, reserves for 

long-term investment depreciation are made based on the difference between the receivables 

and book value of long-term investment. 



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 32 

 

3.2.11 Valuation and depreciation methods for fixed assets 

The assets such as houses, buildings, machines, equipments, gauges and tooling that are owned 

by the Company and have been used for more than one year are regarded as fixed assets. Other 

equipments that are not used for production but have the unit value of more than 2000 RMB 

yuan and have been used for more than two years are also regarded as fixed assets. 

 

The costs of fixed assets are calculated according to the actual purchase price. The interest of 

loans for purchasing fixed assets and the gain/loss of foreign exchange of loans shall be 

capitalized. The added value through significant augment, replacement, renewal, and technical 

innovation shall be regarded as expenses and be listed under fixed assets. The expenses for 

frequent repair and maintenance shall be listed under the expenses of the period. The profit and 

loss from the disposal of fixed assets shall be listed under the non-operational income or 

expenses of the period.  

 

The fixed assets are depreciated by straight-line method. The depreciation rates of the fixed 

assets are determined according to their category, original value, durable years and anticipated 

residue value (residue value rate is 5%) . See the table below: 

 

Fixed assets category No. of years for depreciation Annual depreciation rate 

Houses and buildings 30͘ 40 3.17%͘2.37% 

Universal equipments 14 6.79% 

Transportation vehicles 10͘ 12 9.50%͘7.92% 

Other equipments 5 19.00% 

 

The Company shall make complete checkup on the fixed assets item by item at the end of the 

report period. Due to the continuously falling down of market price or technical obsoleteness, 

damage, and long-term idling, the realizable value of the fixed assets is lower than their book 

value. The reserve for fixed assets depreciation can be made according to the difference 

between the realizable value and the book value. The reserve for fixed assets depreciation shall 

be made by items. 

 

3.2.12 Accounting methods for projects in construction 

The projects in construction are valued by actual costs, including the construction and 

installation expenses and expenses on equipment purchase. The borrowing expenses that are in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of capitalization shall be listed under project costs, 

and the rest expenses shall be listed under financial costs. The project that has already reached 

the operation state but has not finished the final accounting after its complete, will be 

transferred to fixed assets at the historical value from the date of putting into operation. The 

capitalization of borrowing expenses shall be terminated. Adjustments are to be made after the 

complete of final accounting procedure. 

 

The methods for making depreciation reserve for projects in construction: If the project in 

construction has stopped construction and will not re-start in the next three years; if the project 
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is out of date in both performance and technology and has great uncertainties in bringing 

economic benefit; if there are other evidence proving that the value of the project in 

construction has reduced, the Company can make depreciation reserve for the project in 

construction according to the difference between realizable value and the book value by items. 

 

3.2.13. Accounting methods for borrowing expenses 

The interest for raising fund for production shall be listed under financial expenses. The 

borrowing expenses for purchasing fixed assets shall be dealt with according to following 

principles: 

 

3.2.13.1When the assets expenses and borrowing expenses have occurred, and the purchasing 

and building activities have been started to lead assets to the expected operational 

status, the amortization of loan interest and price decreasing/increasing due to special 

loans and the foreign exchange difference will start to be capitalized; 

3.2.13.2The rate of capitalization shall be the weighted average interest rate for special loans of 

the period; 

3.2.13.3If the purchasing and building of fixed assets stop abnormally and last for more than 

three months, the Company shall stop the capitalization of borrowing expenses for 

temporary and take it as the expenses of the period; 

3.3.13.1When the purchased and built fixed assets reach to operational status, the Company 

shall stop the capitalization of borrowing expenses. The borrowing expenses occurred 

hereafter should be listed under period expenses; 

 

3.2.14. Methods for the valuation and amortization of intangible assets 

The obtained intangible assets are entered into account at actual costs. The intangible assets 

transferred through investment are entered into account at the price agreed in the contract. The 

costs of intangible assets shall be amortized averagely during benefit period.  

 

The Company shall make complete checkup on intangible assets item by item at the end of the 

report period. For intangible assets that have been proved of reduced value, the Company shall 

make depreciation reserve for them according the difference between realizable value and book 

value by items. 

 

3.2.15. Methods for long-term deferred and prepaid expenses 

The long-term deferred and prepaid expenses of the Company shall be entered into account at 

the actual costs and be amortized averagely during benefit period of each project. 

 

3.2.16. Principles for revenue confirmation  

Product sales: The Company has transferred the property ownership and the main risks of the 

commodity to buyers, with neither successive management rights nor actual control over the 

commodity. The relevant economic benefit may be produced. When the relevant revenue and 

costs can be reliably measured, the realization of revenue is confirmed. 

 

Labor offering: For the labor work that starts and finishes in the same year, the revenue shall be 

confirmed at the time when the labor work is finished. If the labor work starts and finishes in 
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different fiscal year, the revenue of the relevant labor work shall be confirmed by the 

percentage of the work finished on the balance sheet day, on condition that the result of labor 

work provided could be reliably estimated.  

 

Transfer the assets use right: The economic benefit relevant to the transaction may flow into 

the Company and the amount of revenue could be calculated reliably. 

 

3.2.17. Confirmation principle s for predicted liabilities 

3.2.17.1 If there is any liability that is in accordance with the following conditions at the same 

time, it is confirmed as a liability: 

a. The liability is current; 

b. The performance of such a liability may result in the loss of the economic benefit of the 

Company; 

c. The amount of the liability can be reliably calculated. 

 

3.2.17.2 Amount is the best-estimated figure for clearing the liability. If the expenses to be paid 

are within a range, the best estimated figure should be the average value between the 

upper and lower limited amount of the range. If the expenses to be paid are not within 

a range, the best estimated figure should be determined by the following methods: 

a. If the item is related to single project, the best estimated figure should be determined 

according to the most possible amount;  

b. If the item is related to many projects, the best estimated figure should be determined 

according to the most possible amount and the occurring probability; 

c. If the complete or part of the confirmed liability needs to be compensated by a third party, 

the compensation amount shall be confirmed separately as assets when the receipt of it 

could be basically confirmed. The confirmed compensation amount should not exceed the 

book value of the confirmed liability. 

 

3.2.18. Accounting methods for income tax 

The Company employs tax payable method. 

 

3.2.19. Changes of major accounting policies and accounting estimation 

The cash dividends in the profit distribution preplan made by the board of directors between 

the day after the balance sheet and the approval day of the financial report are formerly listed 

under dividend payable as adjusted item after the period. According to the revised ―Corporate 

Accounting Standards — remained issues of balance sheet‖, the cash dividends are now 

separately listed under shareholders‘ equity in the balance sheet.  

 

The Company has adopted tracing adjustment method for the change of this financial policy. 

By adjustment, the shareholders‘ equity by the end of 2002 is increased to 32.4 million RMB, 

and the dividends payable by the end of 2002 is decreased to 32.4 million RMB. 

 

3.2.20. Basis of consolidation 

The Company compiles consolidated financial statement according to the Provisional 

Regulations on Consolidated Financial Statement and its additional provisions stipulated by the 
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Ministry of Finance.  

 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the data of the parent company and its 

subsidiaries and other relevant data, and comply with the documents of Ministry of Finance, 

Caikuaizi (1995) No.11 ―the notice on printing and releasing the ‗Provisional Regulations on 

Consolidated Financial Statement‘‖ and Caikuaizi (96) No.2 ―Reply to the Application for the 

Scope of Consolidated Financial Statement‖. The long-term investment, actual receivable 

capital, important internal transactions and fund of the Company are offset during the 

consolidation and the minority equity is separately listed and calculated.  

 

The Company and its subsidiaries are employing the same accounting policies and methods. 

 

3.3. Taxation 

3.3.1 Value-added tax (VAT) 

The value-added tax of the Company is calculated at 17% of the sales of products and materials. 

The value-added tax to be paid is the remaining amount of sales tax deducted by purchase tax. 

 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong SG Special Purpose Vehicle Co., 

Ltd. (hereafter abbreviated as SG Special Purpose Vehicle Co.), is a social welfare company. 

According to Liaoning National Tax Bureau document (1994) No.21, the ―Notice of Taxation 

Issues of Circulation Tax for Social Welfare Company Transmitted by National Tax Bureau‖, 

the value-added tax for social welfare company are paid first and refunded later at 100% rate. 

 

3.3.2. Consumption tax 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong SG Special-purpose Vehicle Co., 

Ltd., produces and sells light-duty minibuses whose cylinder displacement is less than 2000 

milliliter. According to relevant stipulations in the Temporary Provisions of Consumption Tax 

of P.R.C., the consumption tax shall be calculated and paid by 3% of the sales revenue. 

 

3.3.3. Business tax 

5% of the income from lease of building is levied for business tax. 

 

3.3.4. City maintenance and construction tax 

The parent company and its subsidiaries (excluding Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd.) paid city 

maintenance and construction tax by 7% of the VAT and turnover tax. 

 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd. (hereafter 

abbreviated as Henan Brake Company), paid city maintenance and construction tax by 5% of 

the VAT and turnover tax. 

 

3.3.5. Education surtax and local educational surtax 

Education surtax was levied by 3% of the taxable amount of VAT and business tax. Local 

educational surtax was levied by 1% of the taxable amount of VAT and business tax. 
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3.3.6. Income tax 

The parent company paid taxable income tax by 33% according to the Enterprise Income Tax 

Temporary Provisions of P.R.C. 

 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong SG Special-purpose Vehicle Co., 

Ltd., is a social welfare company. According to the stipulations in the Enterprise Income Tax 

Temporary Provisions of P.R.C., it is exempted from income tax.  

 

3.4. Profit distribution  

The Company‘s profit after tax is distributed according to the ―Company Law‖ and the 

resolutions made by the general shareholders meeting. The distribution follows the following 

sequence: 

3.4.1 make up for the deficit of the last fiscal year; 

3.4.2 retaining 10% as legal surplus reserve fund; 

3.4.3 retaining 5% as legal public welfare fund; 

3.4.5 retaining free surplus reserve fund; 

3.4.6 distributing dividends to shareholders. 

 

3.5. Share-controlled subsidiaries and joint venture companies 

3.5.1 Share-controlled subsidiaries and joint venture companies 

Name of the invested company 
Business 

scope 

Registered 

capital 

(RMB yuan) 

Investment 

amount 

(RMB yuan) 

Equity 

percentage 
Consolidation 

Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., 

Ltd. 
Bus & coach 220,000,000.00 112,200,000.00 51% Yes 

Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. Axle shaft 54,000,000.00 48,600,000.00 99% Yes 

Shanghai Manhattan Investment Co., 

Ltd. 

Investment 

management 
50,000,000.00 

45,000,000.0

0 
95.1% Yes 

Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd. Auto brake 30,000,000.00 49,070,214.22 51% Yes 

Shandong Rongcheng Shuguang Gears 

Co., Ltd. 
Gear 31,000,000.00 20,770,000.00 67% Yes 

Dandong Shuguang Automotive Trading 

Co., Ltd. 

Wholesale 

and retail of 

vehicle 

11,800,000.00 11,210,000.00 95% Yes 

Dandong Shuguang Special-Purpose 

Vehicle Co., Ltd. 

Refitted 

vehicle 
10,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 90% Yes 

Zhucheng Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. Axle 9,412,000.00 5,412,000.00 57.5% Yes 

 

3.5.2 Changes of share-controlled subsidiaries and joint venture companies 

On 20
th
 December 2002, the general shareholders meeting of Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft 

Co., Ltd. (hereafter abbreviated as Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co.) passed through a 
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resolution that agreed to increase its registered capital from 500,000.00 RMB to 36,500,000.00 

RMB. The increased 36,000,000.00 RMB was invested by Liaoning Shuguang Automotive 

Group Co., Ltd. By then, the investment of the Company to Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft 

Co. has increased from 400,000.00 RMB to 36,400,000.00 RMB, accounting for 99.73% of the 

share capital. This change has been certified by Dandong Yalu River Accountant Institute by 

No.19 (2003) Verification Certificate. 

 

On 28
th
 September 2003, the general shareholders meeting of Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft 

Co. passed through another resolution that agreed to increase its registered capital from 36.5 

million RMB to 54 million, among which the investment of Liaoning Shuguang Automotive 

Group Co., Ltd. increased from 36.4 million RMB to 48.6 million RMB, accounting for 90% 

of the total registered capital, the investment of Dandong Shuguang Special-Purpose Vehicle 

Co., Ltd. increased from 0.1 million RMB to 5.4 million RMB, accounting for 10% of the total 

registered capital. This change has been certified by Dandong New Age Accountant Co., Ltd. 

by No.112 (2003) Verification Certificate. 

 

3.6. Notes to consolidated financial statement 

3.6.1 Cash capital 

Unit: RMB yuan 

Items At end of the report period At the beginning of the report period 

Cash            16,102.99           70,253.46  

Deposit at bank       408,177,957.80  232,811,103.52     

Capital in other currency    

Total 408,194,060.79 232,881,356.98 

 

The balance of deposit at bank of the Company at the end of report period is USD 37,635.51, 

which can be translated into 311,497.83 RMB at the exchange rate on 31
st
 December 2003 (1 

US dollar equals to 8.2767 RMB yuan).  

 

The Company received 3 million RMB bank loans through a mortgage of 3.4 million RMB 

deposit at bank.  

 

The remaining currency capital at year end has increased 75.28% than the beginning of the 

year, primarily due to better collection of operation fund and because that the Company has 

enhanced the collection of accounts receivables. 

 

3.6.2 Notes receivable 

Unit: RMB yuan 

Items At end of the report period At the beginning of the report period 

Bank acceptance draft 303,109,617.07 140,419,982.00 

Commercial acceptance draft   

Total 303,109,617.07 140,419,982.00 

 

Among the balance at the end of the report year, bank acceptance draft with an amount of 
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178,056,260.00 RMB is used as a mortgage to bank to open notes payable. 

 

3.6.3 Accounts receivable 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 

At the end of the report year At the beginning of the report year 

Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt 

Within 1 year 250,060,884.95  71.58%   2,500,608.85  282,008,453.26  81.06% 20,201,776.44  

1-2 years 88,929,033.72  25.46% 26,884,689.87   22,858,711.29  6.57%  3,681,283.13  

2-3 years   7,071,550.86  2.03%  1,060,732.63   20,126,341.72  5.79%  3,074,238.57  

Above 3 years 
   

3,263,726.15  
0.93%   1,517,097.67   22,886,077.81  6.58%  4,577,215.56  

Total 349,325,195.68 100.00% 31,963,129.02 347,879,584.08  100.00% 31,534,513.70  

 

There are no arrears from shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the 

Company‘s share equity among the remaining amount of the accounts receivable. 

 

The total amount of arrears of the top five debtors is 149,850,967.83 RMB, accounting for 

42.09% of the total amount of accounts receivable at the end of report period. 

 

According to the Comments of Document Danzheng No.87 (2002) from Dandong People‘s 

Government, when Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd. (hereafter abbreviated as 

Dandong Huanghai Co.) was established, Liaoning Huanghai Automobile (Group) Co., Ltd. 

(hereafter abbreviated as Huanghai Group Co.) made a one-time reserve for the assets 

depreciation of 27,397,168.24 RMB, which is 10% of the evaluated value of the invested 

accounts receivable. This sum is deducted from the evaluated net assets. It balances the 

national monetary capital of Huanghai Group Co. The depreciation value is listed under the 

reserve for bad debt at the end of the report period. 

 

3.6.4 Other account receivable 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 

At year end At year beginning 

Amount

 

Percentage

 
Reserve for bad debt Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt 

Within 1 year  18,978,597.75  59.31%    189,785.98   13,805,981.16  46.53%   138,059.81  

1-2 years     132,343.21  0.41%     13,234.32    1,433,817.31  4.83%    143,381.73  

2-3 years     992,970.51  3.10%    148,945.58    3,134,361.41  10.57%    470,154.21  

Above 3 years  11,896,890.59  37.18%  2,582,885.35   11,297,107.24  38.07%  2,720,895.34  

Total 32,000,802.06 100.00% 2,934,851.23 29,671,267.12 100.00% 3,472,491.09 

 

There are no arrears from shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the 

Company‘s share equity among the remaining amount of the accounts receivable. 

 

The total amount of arrears of the top five debtors is 25,734,576.36 RMB, accounting for 

80.42% of the total amount of accounts receivable at the end of report period. See details 

below: 
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Unit: in RMB yuan 

 Name of company Contents Amount Age 

1 Liaoning Huanghai Automobile (Group) Co., Ltd.  Current fund 13,333,111.19 Within 1 year 

2 Jiujiang Changhe Automobile Co., Ltd. Investment fund  9,000,000.00  More than 3 years 

3 Italian CEMSA Company Equipment fund  1,658,102.75  More than 3 years 

4 Henan Auto Brake Plant Current fund 929,333.51 2-3 years 

5 American Bolaily Mechanical Company  Current fund 814,028.91 More than 3 years 

 Total  25,734,576.36  

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Henan Auto Brake Company, has made an 

investment of 12 million RMB to Jiujiang Changhe Automobile Co., Ltd. Because Jiujiang 

Changhe Automobile Co., Ltd. has not finished the 2
nd

 increase in capital share issuing, the 

invested capital remained is temporarily listed under other accounts receivable. 

 

The American Bolaily Mechanical Company has been in arrears for more than 5 years. The 

Company therefore made a reserve for bad debt by 45% of the arrears. Details of the lawsuit 

case with Bolaily are given in Chapter 9, Important Issues. 

 

3.6.5 Accounts prepaid                                                          Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 
At year end At year beginning 

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Within 1 year     94,924,036.31  98.70%  66,676,447.87  97.21% 

1-2 years       1,134,357.19  1.18% 1,804,920.91  2.63% 

2-3 years          21,704.00  0.02% 87,917.26  0.13% 

More than 3 years         97,997.89  0.10% 19,980.63  0.03% 

Total     96,178,095.39  100.00% 68,589,266.67 100.00% 

 

There are no arrears from shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the 

Company‘s share equity among the remaining amount of the accounts prepaid. 

 

The balance of accounts prepaid at the end of report period increased 27,588,828.72 RMB by 

40.22% than that at the beginning of report period, primarily because of the increased 

prepayments for imported components and to some suppliers in order to ensure the production 

requirements in 2004. 

 

3.6.6 Inventory  Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 
At year end At year beginning 

Amount Reserve for inventory Amount Reserve for inventory 

Materials in stock    130,452,678.31     210,298.77     105,224,005.44      120,101.21  

Finished products    168,344,881.20     359,356.49     137,862,720.29      389,844.39  

Products in process     36,153,286.73   1,505,532.22      39,436,702.08      360,245.02  

Low-value consumables      2,759,033.76        6,337,580.00   

Outsourced materials      3,862,706.65        3,435,092.31   

Delivered products     64,914,798.33       18,709,238.33   
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Total 406,487,384.98  2,075,187.48   311,005,338.45    870,190.62  

 

The balance of year-end inventory increased 95,482,046.53 RMB by 30.70% than year 

beginning, primarily due to the following reasons: 

 

A. The main reason for the increase of delivered products is that the share-controlled 

subsidiaries of the Company, Dandong Huanghai Co. and Shuguang Special-Purpose 

Vehicle Co., delivered their finished vehicles without transferring the main risks. 

B. The main reason for the increase of finished products is that share-controlled subsidiaries 

took the influence of two important holidays in China in January 2004 into considerations. 

They therefore produced the finished products according to sales order and increase the 

stock for finished products to meet the market demand. 

C. The main reason for the increase of raw materials is that share-controlled subsidiaries 

increased their reserve for steel, castings and other raw materials based on the information 

from raw materials market. 

 

At the end of report period, the Company checked inventory item by item. The materials in 

stock that could not meet the requirement of new products or could not be used due to product 

upgrading will have a higher stock costs than the realizable net present value. Therefore, the 

Company made reserve for stock depreciation according to the difference between the 

realizable net present value and the book value at the end of report period.  

 

The reason for the increase of in-process product depreciation is that the share-controlled 

subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Huanghai Co., made a reserve for stock depreciation 

according to the wear level and the analysis and evaluations on the actual conditions of 

testing-purpose vehicles. 

 

3.6.7 Expenses to be amortized Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items At  year beginning 
Increase in this 

year 

Amortization in 

this year 
At year end 

Heating  40,000.00    10,000.00     30,000.00  

Special maintenance for testing house   627,610.11   418,406.74    209,203.37  

Others    30,133.33 19,833.33 10,300.00 

Total  697,743.44 448,240.07 249,503.37 

 

3.6.8 Long-term investment 

3.6.8.1 Investment projects Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 

At the beginning of report 

period Increase in 

this year 

Decrease in 

this year 

At end of report period 

Amount 
Reserve for 

depreciation 
Amount 

Reserve for 

depreciation 

Long-term equity 

investment  
40,478,316.41                            4,614,596.01  1,787,701.79  43,305,210.63   
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Long-term claim 

investment  
      

Total 40,478,316.41  4,614,596.01  1,787,701.79  43,305,210.63   

 

Apart from the investment benefit got from equity method, the main reason for the increase of 

long-term equity investment is as follows: 

 

On 15
th
 June 2003, a resolution was made and approved by the board of directors of a 

share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Henan Brake Company, to invest 500,000.00 

RMB yuan to Hebei Chang‘an Auto Co., Ltd. 

 

Apart from the amortization of equity investment difference, the main reason for the decrease 

of long-term equity investment is as follows: 

 

On 8
th
 January 2003, the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Shuguang Auto 

Trading Co., Ltd. (hereafter abbreviated as Shuguang Auto Trading Company) accepted 

400,000.00 shares of Dandong Shuguang Sales & Maintenance Co., Ltd. that has a special 

agreement with Shanghai VW Auto (hereafter abbreviated as Shuguang Shanghai Auto Special 

Repair Company) from natural person Mr. Yi Guangyi. By then, the shares of Shuguang Shanghai 

Auto Repair Company held by Shuguang Auto Trading Company has increased from 42.5% to 

59.17%. It was consolidated in the financial statements in 2003 and has an influence of 

1,122,083.33RMB yuan. 

 

3.6.8.2 Long-term equity investment 

a. Stock investment 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being invested Share class 
No. of 

shares 

Holding percentage in the 

invested company 

Investment 

amount 

Reserve for 

depreciation 

Beijing Auto Futian Vehicle Co., Ltd. Corporate share 2.3 million 1.03% 5,000,000,00  

 

b. Other equity investment 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being invested 
Investment 

duration 

Holding percentage in 

the invested company 

Investment 

amount 

Reserve for 

depreciation 

Anhui Ankai Futian Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd.  30% 21,330,473.15  

Beijing Xinrongxingye Investment consultant Co., Ltd.   11.11% 100,000.00  

Beijing Futian Huanbaodongli Co., Ltd.   0.51% 2,000,000.00  

Jiujiang Changhe Auto Co., Ltd.   1.86% 3,000,000.00  

Nanjing Chang‘an Auto Co., Ltd.  15 0.48% 1,440,000.00  

Hebei Chang‘an Auto Co., Ltd.  0.562% 500,000.00  

Zhenjiang Fanwo Auto Component Co., Ltd. 30 54% 4,210,347.62  

Total   32,580,820.77  
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c. Other equity investment (equity method) 

Company being invested 

Initial 

investment 

amount 

Investment 

amount at year 

beginning 

Increase/ 

decrease 

in equity 

Dividend 

in cash 

Investment 

amount at 

year end 

Accumulated 

increase/ 

decrease in equity 

Anhui Ankai Futian 

Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. 
18,000,000.00  18,716,591.13  2,613,882.02   21,330,473.15   3,330,473.15  

Zhenjiang Fanwo Auto 

Component Co., Ltd. 
2,837,920.79 2,822,213.76 1,388,133.86  4,210,347.62 1,372,426.83 

        Total 20,837,920.79 21,538,804.89 4,002,015.88  25,540,820.77 4,702,899.98 

 

d. Consolidated price difference 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being 

invested 

Initial 

amount 

Amortization 

duration 

Balance at 

year beginning 

Amortization 

in this year 

Balance at 

year end 

Reason for 

difference 

Dandong Shuguang Auto 

Trading Co., Ltd.  
6,571,973.13  10 years 6,298,140.92      657,197.28  5,640,943.64 

Premium price 

investment 

Dandong Shuguang 

Shanghai VW Auto 

Special Repair Co., Ltd. 

91,867.40  10 years        8,421.18    83,446.22 
Premium price 

investment 

Total 6,663,840.53  6,298,140.92 665,618.46 5,724,389.86  

 

3.6.9. Fixed assets Unit: in RMB yuan 

Original value of fixed 

assets 
At year beginning Increase in this period Decrease in this period At year end 

Buildings   122,993,140.31     26,146,694.01        598,464.25    148,541,370.07  

Universal equipments   364,880,925.72   53,820,614.62       1,739,789.32    416,961,751.02  

Transportation equipments    15,607,481.07      2,629,926.83      1,643,214.14     16,594,193.76  

Other equipments      7,697,188.66      2,300,256.90        274,859.50      9,722,586.06  

Total   511,178,735.76  84,897,492.36  4,256,327.21   591,819,900.91  

Accumulated depreciation     

Buildings    16,014,593.48   3,736,726.45      304,464.47    19,446,855.46  

Universal equipments   131,795,462.74   25,322,462.91    1,041,548.71   156,076,376.94  

Transportation equipments     5,903,732.71    1,223,247.86   1,266,632.70      5,860,347.87  

Other equipments     3,765,540.56  1,596,281.26         328,782.18     5,033,039.64  

Total   157,479,329.49  31,878,718.48   2,941,428.06   186,416,619.91 

Net value of fixed assets  353,699,406.27    405,403,281.00  

Reserve for fixed assets depreciation 

Buildings       141,009.36          141,009.36  

Universal equipments   298,231.08      298,231.08  

Transportation equipments       88,901.37          88,901.37  

Other equipments        92,286.26           92,286.26  

Total       620,428.07          620,428.07  

Net value of fixed assets    353,078,978.20       404,782,852.93  
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The balance of fixed assets at year end increased 80,641,165.15 RMB yuan by 15.87% 

compared with year beginning. The main reason is that technical innovations, equipment 

installations and other fragmentary projects implemented by parent company and 

share-controlled subsidiaries of the Company have been put into operation. Among the increase, 

68,270,740.27 RMB yuan is transferred from in-process projects.  

 

Among the balance of fixed assets at year end, the value of buildings for loan deposit is worth 

403,598.29 RMB yuan, and the value of machines is worth 221,993,329.89 RMB yuan. 

 

3.6.10. Projects in progress Unit: in RMB yuan 

In-process projects 
At year 

beginning 

Increase in 

this period 

Transfer into fixed 

assets in this period 

Other 

decrease 
At year end 

Source of 

finance 

Project 

progress 

Technical innovation of 

Shuguang Special- 

Purpose Vehicle  

     273,356.00   22,071,536.44   22,245,692.44                
      

99,200.00  
Self raise 100% 

Brake equipment 

installation 
   5,932,305.51   19,329,914.78   17,753,855.13               

   

7,508,365.16  
Self raise 100% 

Axle shaft technical 

innovation project 
    947,306.00                             947,306.00    

Share raise 

& self raise 
100% 

The 2nd stage of 

Ninth-Five axle 

technical innovation 

     234,174.40                             234,174.40    
Share raise 

& self raise 
100% 

Steering knuckle 

production line 
    6,411,547.85     6,411,547.85    Share raise 100% 

Eaton project   15,981,223.00   13,131,303.00            
   

2,849,920.00  
Self raise 90% 

Technical innovation of 

Carrier assembly and 

differential case 

    9,333,458.44       396,000.00           8,937,458.44  Self raise 
In initial  

stage 

Foundational reform of 

stamping machine 
    5,698,441.20     3,314,073.16     2,384,368.04  Self raise 90% 

Flexible assembly line 

of front suspension 
    2,132,092.65      2,132,092.65  Self raise 

In initial  

stage 

Hexahedron production 

line, chassis frame 

reform  

  10,914,433.14    10,914,433.14  Self raise 70% 

Zhucheng's moving and 

reform 
    1,724,434.00    

   

1,724,434.00  
Self raise 

In design 

stage 

Fragmentary project    3,592,234.29     3,646,536.14     3,836,788.29   45,227.50    3,356,754.64    

Total  10,979,376.20   97,243,617.64   68,270,740.27  45,227.50 39,907,026.07    

Reserve for 

in-process project 

depreciation 
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Fragmentary project   88,427.50    88,427.50    

Total   88,427.50    88,427.50    

Net value of 

in-process projects 
10,890,948.70    39,907,026.07  

 

 

There is no capitalized interest for the increase of in-process projects within this period. 

 

The balance of in-process projects at year end increased 28,927,649.87 by 263.47% compared 

with year beginning. The main reasons are that the Company increased investment on auto 

component innovation projects such as the innovation of carrier assembly and differential case and 

on Eaton project; the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Henan Brake Company, 

increased the purchase of equipments for brake production; the share-controlled subsidiary of the 

Company, Dandong Huanghai Company, increased investment on technical innovation of bus 

hexahedron production line and chassis frame production line. 

 

3.6.11. Intangible assets 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Type 
Original 

amount 

Year 

beginning 

Increase in 

this period 

Amortization 

in this period 

Accumulated 

amortization 
Year end 

Remaining 

amortization period 

Land tenure 3,750,677.31 3,461,300.90  76,917.80 366,294.21 3,384,383.10 44.00 

Land tenure 13,736,632.00 13,264,582.79  283,229.53 755,278.74 12,981,353.26 45.83 

Land tenure 5,736,310.60 5,592,902.84  114,726.21 258,133.97 5,478,176.63 47.75 

Land tenure 3,318,432.00 3,224,409.76  66,368.64 160,390.88 3,158,041.12 47.58 

Land tenure 627,837.22 583,888.62     12,556.80   56,505.40     571,331.82  45.50 

Land tenure 236,231.28 203,056.18     10,270.92     43,446.02    192,785.26  18.58 

Land tenure 9,328,000.00 8,721,679.96  186,560.00 792,880.04 8,535,119.96 45.75 

Land tenure   544,400.00   544,400.00     11,795.33     11,795.33    532,604.67  48.92 

Land tenure   400,000.00    400,000.00     18,000.00     18,000.00    382,000.00  47.75 

Non-patent 

technology 
1,412,000.00 964,866.67  141,200.04 588,333.37 823,666.63 5.83 

Patent 

technology 
1,548,030.00 1,345,178.93 

 23,400.00    217,804.24    397,255.31  1,150,774.69  
5.17 

Know-how 5,690,200.00 5,216,016.67  1,896,733.33 2,370,916.66 3,319,283.34 1.75 

Total 46,328,750.41 42,577,883.32 967,800.00 3,036,162.84 5,819,229.93 40,509,520.48  

 

The newly increased intangible assets in 2003 are due to the payment for land tenure by the 

share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Shuguang Auto Trading Company.  

 

Among the balance of intangible assets, the land tenure for loan deposit is worth 10,384,300.00 

RMB yuan.  

 

The Company checked intangible assets item by item at the end of the report period and did not 

find any non-patent technology substituted by other new technology that may influence the 
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Company‘s profit-creation ability, nor that the value of expected receivable intangible assets is 

lower than its book value due to the market price decrease of land tenure to a large extent and 

non-recovery within the remaining of amortization period. Therefore, no reserve was made for 

intangible assets depreciation at the end of the report period. 

 

3.6.12. Long-term expenses to be amortized 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Type 
Original 

value 

Year 

beginning 

Increase in 

this period 

Amortization 

in this period 

Accumulated 

amortization 
Year end 

Remaining 

amortization 

period 

Software 138,400.00 40,080.00  25,813.33 24,133.33 14,266.67 0.83-0.92 

Software 151,400.00 79,180.00  30,280.00 102,500.00 48,900.00 1.25-1.83 

Software 176,509.50 135,220.93  35,301.90 76,590.47 99,919.03 2.33-3 

Software 862,506.50 277,149.40 556,721.00 172,501.30 201,137.40 661,369.10 3.08-4 

Software 273,100.00  273,100.00 39,796.67 39,796.67 233,303.33 4.17-4.45 

Quality certificate fee 16,333.33  16,333.33 3,266.67 3,266.67 13,066.66 3.92 

Decoration fee 570,000.00 522,500.00  114,000.00 161,500.00 408,500.00 3.58 

Total 2,188,249.33 1,054,130.33 846,154.33 420,959.87 708,924.54 1,479,324.79  

 

3.6.13. Short-term debt 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Loan type Year end Year beginning 

Mortgage loan    100,816,020.00  98,226,380.00 

Guarantee loan    175,150,000.00  82,380,000.00 

Credit loan                     

Hypothecation loan        6,000,000.00  45,000,000.00 

Total    281,966,020.00  225,606,380.00 

 

The balance of short-term loans at the end of report period increased 56,359,640.00 RMB yuan 

by 24.98% compared with that in the beginning of report year, primarily due to the 

replenishment of current capital to increase the production scale. 

 

The balance of mortgage loan at the end of report period included a loan of 600,000.00 US 

dollars. The exchange rate from US dollar to RMB on 31
st
 December 2003 was 1 US dollar to 

8.2767 RMB yuan. The amount of the loan translated into RMB is 4,966,020.0 RMB yuan.  

 

The balance of guarantee loans at year end included 115,000,000.00 RMB bank loan guaranteed 

by Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.; and 9,000,000.00 RMB bank loan guaranteed 

by the Company.  

 

The balance of hypothecation loan at year end included 3,000,000.00 bank loan pledged by 

3,400,000.00 RMB bank deposit; 3, 000,000.00 RMB bank loan pledged by 3,379,000.00 notes 

receivable. 
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3.6.14 Notes payable Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning 

Bank acceptance draft 325,731,000.17 130,872,794.59 

Commercial acceptance draft   

Total 325,731,000.17 130,872,794.59 

Notes payable at year end increased 194,858,205.58 RMB yuan by 148.89% compared with 

year beginning, primarily due to the increased proportion of payments for notes payable to 

goods. 

 

3.6.15 Account payable Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 
Year end Year beginning 

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Within 1 year      504,590,698.45  94.63%      370,592,612.69  99.53% 

1-2 years       27,325,531.78  5.12%          968,555.87  0.26% 

2-3 years          659,650.62  0.12%          170,124.94  0.05% 

More than 3 years          694,584.19  0.13%          581,861.32  0.16% 

Total      533,270,465.04  100.00%      372,313,154.82  100.00% 

 

There are no debts to shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the Company‘s 

share equity among the remaining amount of the accounts payable. 

 

The year-end balance of accounts payable increased 160,957,310.22 RMB yuan by 43.23% 

compared with that at year beginning, primarily due to the increase of account payable for 

purchasing raw materials with the increase of main operating activities. 

 

The total accounts payable to the top five suppliers is 60,929,556.87 RMB, accounting for 

11.43% of the year-end balance of accounts payable.  

 

The year-end balance of accounts payable whose age exceed three years are mainly from the 

product guarantee fee for suppliers owed by the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, 

Henan Brake Company.  

 

3.6.16 Advance receipts                                            Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 
Year end Year beginning 

Amount Percentage Age Percentage 

Within 1 year       34,139,522.73  94.70%      25,144,449.83  98.48% 

1-2 years        1,743,122.97  4.84%          145,676.34  0.57% 

2-3 years          145,676.34  0.40%          233,553.00  0.91% 

More than 3 years           21,282.00  0.06%           10,682.00  0.04% 

Total       36,049,604.04  100.00%      25,534,361.17  100.00% 
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There are no debts to shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the Company‘s 

share equity among the remaining amount of the advance receipts. 

 

The year-end balance of advance receipts increased 10,515,242.87 RMB yuan by 41.18% 

compared with year beginning, primarily because:ŵthe Company‘s share-controlled subsidiary, 

Dandong Huanghai Company, has collected the payment for vehicles to be sold; Ŷthe 

share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Co., 

Ltd., has got the advance payment of 21,606,162.83 RMB yuan for vehicles from buyers.  

 

The total advance receipts from the top five customers is 16,506,207.28 RMB yuan, accounting 

for 45.79% of the year-end balance of advance receipts.  

 

1,910,081.31 RMB yuan of the year-end balance of advance receipts is over 1-year‘s old, 

which comes from the difference between the advance receipts of vehicles and the calculation 

prices of the share-controlled subsidiary, Dandong Huanghai Company. 

 

3.6.17 Salary payable 

The year-end balance of salary payable is 5,328,882.77 RMB yuan, which is the contracted bonus 

for share-controlled subsidiaries of the Company. 

 

3.6.18 Dividend payable 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning 

Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.  242,596.93 

Total  242,596.93 

 

3.6.19 Taxes payable 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning Tax rate 

VAT    1,672,428.45      8,073,070.44  17% 

Turnover tax        48,395.00        -244.85  5% 

City construction tax       712,261.22        -39,603.71  7% ȁ5% 

Company income tax    6,865,602.00          87,002.15 15%ȁ33% 

Personal income tax       -39,821.44        202,521.77   

Housing property tax       116,774.28          3,460.90  1.2%ȁ12% 

Contract tax       127,632.00        127,632.00  4% 

Vehicle and ship usage tax           300.00    

Land usage tax        23,925.60          1,437.54   

Consumption tax    3,347,379.66   3% 

Total 12,874,876.77 8,455,276.24  
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The year-end balance of taxes payable increased 4,419,600.53 RMB yuan by 52.27% 

compared with year beginning, primarily coming from the taxation of minibuses produced and 

sold by the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Shuguang Special Purpose 

Vehicle Company, according to the relevant provisions in the Temporary Stipulation of 

Consumption Tax in P.R.C. 

 

3.6.20 Other accounts payable 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning Payment standard 

Education surtax    593,940.47     162,604.72 3% of VAT and 4% of turnover tax 

Housing public accumulation fund                 123,586.40   

Total 593,940.47 286,191.12   

 

3.6.21 Other accounts payable 

Age 
Year end Year beginning 

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Within 1 year      36,814,062.29  80.15%      24,097,011.14  91.17% 

1-2 years        8,221,706.46  17.90%        1,077,142.07  4.08% 

2-3 years          400,018.99  0.87%        1,219,341.84  4.61% 

More than 3 years          496,256.33  1.08%          37,222.00  0.14% 

Total      45,932,044.07  100.00%      26,430,717.05  100.00% 

 

There are no debts to shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the Company‘s 

share equity among the remaining amount of other accounts payable. 

 

The year-end balance of other accounts payable increased 19,501,327.02 RMB yuan by 

73.78% compared with year beginning, primarily because:  

 

a. According to the reply from Dandong People‘s Government by (2002), Document No. 87 – 

Comments on Contributions of Liaoning Huanghai Automotive (Group) Co., Ltd, the 

Company agreed to make 15,000,000.00 RMB yuan reserve from the evaluated net assets 

for Dandong Huanghai Company as arrangement fees for internal retired employees when 

jointly establishing Dandong Huanghai Company with Liaoning Huanghai Automotive 

(Group) Co., Ltd. Dandong Huanghai Company shall pay 350,000.00 RMB yuan every 

month. By the end of 31
st
 December 2003, there still have been 10,100,000.00 RMB yuan 

unpaid. 

b. There is an amount of 5,237,000.00 RMB yuan of transportation expenses in the 4
th
 season 

unpaid by the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Shuguang Special Purpose 

Vehicle Company. 

 

See below for items with a large amount of accounts payable in other accounts payable: 
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 Name  Amount Explanation 

1 Internal retiree salary of Huanghai Group‘s employees    10,100,000.00  Internal retire arrangement fee 

2 Transportation expenses     5,237,000.00  Transportation expenses unpaid 

3 Guarantee fee of distributors     3,500,000.00  Guarantee fee 

4 Freight of Transport Company     2,470,374.95  Freight unpaid 

5 Sales contract expenses     2,331,828.02  Sales contract expenses 

 Total  23,639,202.97  

 

3.6.22 Withh eld expenses 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning 

Profit return to distributors     6,355,300.00      2,665,200.00  

Award for payback of special vehicles        909,000.00  

Sales expenses        1,464,000.00  

Advertising expenses      2,460,804.64   

Circulating warehouse expenses         252,411.00   

Heating expenses         38,924.80  

Water and electricity expenses        120,288.07  

Total 9,068,515.64   5,197,412.87  

 

The year-end balance of withheld expenses increased 3,871,102.77 RMB yuan by 74.48% 

compared with year beginning, primarily coming from the increased profit return withheld for 

distributors by the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Shuguang Special Purpose 

Vehicle Company.  

 

3.6.23 Long-term loans due in one year 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Type of loans Year end Year beginning 

Mortgage loan      11,000,000.00       40,375,546.45  

Guarantee loan          21,682,760.00  

Total      11,000,000.00 62,058,306.45 

 

The year-end balance of long–term loans due in one year reduced 51,058,306.45 RMB yuan by 

82.27% compared with year beginning, primarily because that the Company repaid the 

long-term loans in time 

 

3.6.24 Long-term loans 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

From 
Balance at year 

end 
Loan maturity  

Annual 

interest rate 
Loan condition 

Bank of China Dandong Branch   10,000,000.00  2003.03.11----2005.03.10 5.490% Guarantee loan 

Bank of China Dandong Branch  25,000,000.00  2003.07.23----2005.07.22 5.2155% Guarantee loan 

Bank of China Dandong Branch   5,000,000.00  2003.03.24----2005.03.02 5.49% Guarantee loan 
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Bank of China Dandong Branch   2,000,000.00  2003.11.11----2005.03.12 5.49% Guarantee loan 

Bank of China Xinxiang Branch   5,000,000.00  2003.11.07----2005.11.01 4.779% Mortgage loan 

China Industrial & Commercial Bank yuanbao 

Branch 
15,000,000.00 2003.03.26----2006.03.25 5.490% Mortgage loan 

Loan interest 6,301,421.45    

Total 68,301,421.45    

 

The year-end balance of long-term loans increased 54,441,421.45 RMB yuan by 392.80% 

compared with year beginning, primarily because that the Company increased investment on 

some projects with self-raised fund in 2003.  

 

The year-end balance of guarantee loan includes 35,000,000.00 RMB yuan bank loan guaranteed 

by Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.; and 7,000,000.00 RMB bank loan for the 

share-controlled subsidiaries guaranteed by the Company. 

 

3.6.25 Special accounts payable Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year end Year beginning 

Financial allocation 2,657,052.00 2,657,052.00 

Special fund by national debt 6,960,000.00  

Total 9,617,052.00 2,657,052.00 

 

In 2003 the Company received a special fund of 6,960,000.00 RMB yuan by national debt for 

emphasized technical innovation project. The project has not been started yet. 

 

3.6.26 Share capital    Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 
Year 

beginning

 

Changê ̅̆̇̃ 

Year end

 

Issued 

shares 

Stock 

dividend 

Share capital 

transferred 

from public 

reserve fund  

Others Subtotal 

1). Uncirculated shares        

ŵ Initiator‘s shares 69,750,000.00      69,750,000.00 

Of which̔         

State-owned share s        

Domestic corporate shares 69,750,000.00      69,750,000.00 

Foreign corporate shares        

Others        

Ŷ Raised corporate share         

ŷ Staff shares 20,250,000.00    -20,250,000.00 -20,250,000.00  



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 51 

 

Ÿ Preferred stock or others        

Subtotal of uncirculated shares 90,000,000.00    -20,250,000.00 -20,250,000.00 69,750,000.00 

2) Circulated shares        

ŵDomestic RMB ordinary shares 72,000,000.00    20,250,000.00 20,250,000.00 92,250,000.00 

Ŷ Domestic foreign capital shares        

ŷ External foreign capital share        

Ÿ Others        

Total of circulated shares  72,000,000.00    20,250,000.00 20,250,000.00 92,250,000.00 

3) Total number of shares 162,000,000.00      162,000,000.00 

 

According to the authority approval document No. [2000] 165 issued by China Securities 

Regulatory Commission, the Notice on Approving the Public Issuing of Dandong Shuguang 

Axle Co., Ltd., staff shares are allowed to be circulated three years after the issuing date. The 

staff shares were circulated from 31
st
 December, 2003. 

 

3.6.27 Capital reserve fund Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year beginning Increase in this period Decrease in this period Year end 

Share capital surplus 231,573,351.12   231,573,351.12 

Reserve for equity investment 3,109,090.21   874,349.12      3,983,439.33 

Other capital reserve fund 300,000.00        300,000.00  

Total  874,349.12  235,856,790.45 

 

The increase of reserve for equity investment is primarily because the share-controlled 

subsidiaries changed other equity. The Company calculates its benefit according to its 

investment proportion. The following table shows the changes of other equity of subsidiaries: 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Name of company Amount Contents 

Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Co. 687,525.42 Benefit from debt reconsolidation 

Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Co. 108,358.04 The amount can not be paid 

Fengcheng Axle Shaft Co. 11,200.00 Benefit from debt reconsolidation 

Shuguang Auto Trading Company 93,615.69 Acceptance of cash donation 

Henan Auto Brake Company 113,786.48 Benefit from debt reconsolidation 

Total 1,014,485.63  
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3.6.28 Surplus reserve fund                       

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Year beginning Increase in this period Decrease in this period Year end 

Legal surplus reserve fund 20,907,878.07     16,692,925.99   37,600,803.96 

Public welfare fund     7,616,823.05     8,346,462.96   15,963,286.01 

Free surplus reserve fund                                    1,642,568.26   1,642,568.26 

Total 28,524,701.12 26,681,957.11  55,206,658.23 

 

The increased free surplus reserve fund in this period is to be withdrawn as the free surplus 

reserve fund for the development of the Company, which has been approved and passed by the 

shareholders meeting of the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Shuguang Special 

Purpose Vehicle Company. When consolidating the financial statements, the Company draw 

additional free surplus reserve fund according to the investment proportion of Shuguang 

Special Purpose Vehicle Company. 

 

3.6.29 Profit  retained 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Net profit 93,840,058.94    37,117,660.96 

Plus:  Profit retained at year-beginning   14,829,420.46  19,784,316.19  

 Transfer of surplus reserve fund   

Minus:  Retained legal surplus reserve fund 16,692,925.90     6,448,371.12  

 Retained legal public welfare fund 8,346,462.95     3,224,185.57  

 Retained discretionary surplus reserve fund 1,642,568.26     

 Ordinary share dividend payable  48,600,000.00    32,400,000.00  

 Common share dividend transferred as share capital   

 Profit retained at year end 33,387,522.29  14,829,420.46  

 

The general shareholders meeting of 2002 approved and passed the profit distribution preplan 

of 2002. Based on the total share capital of 162 million shares on 31
st
 December 2002, the 

Company distributed a dividend of 2 RMB yuan for every 10 shares (including tax). The total 

amount of dividend for ordinary shares is 32.4 million RMB yuan and has been paid in 2003.  

 

According to the profit distribution preplan of 2003 made by the 5
th
 session of the 4

th
 board 

meeting, based on the total share capital of 162 million shares on 31
st
 December 2003, the 

Company distributed a cash dividend of 3 RMB yuan for every 10 shares (including tax). The 

total cash dividend is 48.6 million RMB yuan, as shown in note 11 to financial statement 

attached.  
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3.6.30 Income from main operating activities Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Axles      488,947,171.56       290,761,962.86  

Brakes      149,046,961.41       119,674,788.67  

Auto components       25,681,714.80  7,831,415.13  

Buses, coaches and special-purpose vehicles    1,371,396,608.84        189,069,387.39  

Distribution of other vehicles      163,258,089.80        65,242,693.58 

Auto repair        9,647,728.53   

Total 2,207,978,274.94 672,580,247.63 

 

The income from main operating activities of 2003 increased 1,535,398,027.31 RMB by 

228.28% compared with the same period in last year. The main reasons for this are: The 

income from main operating activities of share-controlled subsidiary, Dandong Huanghai 

Company and Shuguang Auto Trading Company, covered the income of the whole year in 

2003, but the income from main operating activities of Dandong Huanghai Company in 2002 

only covered the income from December 2002 and the income from main operating business of 

Shuguang Auto Trading Company only covered the income from August to December 2002, 

which resulted in an increase of income from main operating activities by 898,670,586.01 

RMB yuan. In addition to this, with the increase of output from the innovation projects with 

the Company-raised fund and the self-raised fund, and the increase of sales market share of 

special-purpose vehicles, car axles and light-duty axles, the income of the Company increased.  

 

The total sales revenue got from the top five customers in 2003 is 417,352,390.06 RMB yuan, 

accounting for 18.90% of the total income from main operating activities. 

 

Distribution by regions Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Dandong area      2,052,107,942.95  515,600,412.30 

Xinxiang area        178,227,719.91  133,592,232.57     

Subtotal   2,230,335,662.86  649,192,644.87 

The offset among subsidiaries       117,786,654.33      42,468,964.04 

Total   2,112,549,008.53  606,723,680.83 

 

3.6.31 Costs of main operating business Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Axles      372,901,199.72       216,902,772.81  

Brakes      104,303,559.38        80,069,551.90  

Auto components       17,896,147.00  5,306,898.01  

Buses, coaches, special-purpose vehicles    1,136,315,660.58      152,777,122.79 

Distribution of other vehicles      157,083,196.88  63,096,881.83 

Auto repair        7,739,463.52   

Total 1,796,239,227.08 518,153,227.34 

 



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 54 

Distribution by area Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Dandong area     1,708,882,261.58  415,406,361.13 

Xinxiang area       125,246,589.76     89,381,149.68  

Subtotal   1,834,128,851.34  504,787,510.81 

Offset among subsidiaries      120,721,120.43     41,862,200.81 

Total   1,713,407,730.91  462,925,310.00 

 

3.6.32 Taxes and surtax of main operating activities Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Turnover tax           148,762.00   

Consumption tax         7,883,329.91   

City construction tax        6,189,215.75      2,142,251.33  

Education surtax         3,547,037.10      1,233,519.42  

Total 17,768,344.76 3,375,770.75 

 

3.6.33 Profit from other businesses Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Sales of materials     5,974,936.53  538,765.73 

Real estate rent               419,233.00  

Income from storage       165,421.12        141,810.30  

Processing fee     1,221,691.31        238,092.18  

Others       935,098.23        177,521.01  

Total     8,297,147.19       1,515,422.22 

 

The profit from other businesses in 2003 increased 6,781,724.97 RMB by 447.51% compared with 

the same period in last year, primarily due to the increase in sales of self-made semi-products, 

materials and waste materials. In addition, the processing business for outsourcers also increased. 

 

3.6.34 Operating expenses 

The amount of operating expenses in 2003 is 121,609,742.07 RMB yuan, which increased 

88,551,349.63 RMB yuan by 267.86% compared with the same period in last year. The main 

reasons for this are: The operating expenses of share-controlled subsidiary, Dandong Huanghai 

Company and Shuguang Auto Trading Company, covered those of the whole year in 2003, but 

the operating expenses of Dandong Huanghai Company in 2002 only covered those from 

December 2002 and the operating expenses of Shuguang Auto Trading Company only covered 

those from August to December 2002, which resulted in an increase of operating expenses by 

34,967,316.69 RMB yuan. In addition, with the large-scale increase of the sales of the 

Company, the relevant expenses on transportation, storage, advertisement, quality guarantee, 

after-sales service, sales award, marketing and etc. have also increased. 
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3.6.35 Management expenses 

The amount of management expenses of the Company in 2003 is 119,147,460.07 RMB yuan, 

which increased 75,257,204.15 RMB yuan by 171.47% compared with the same period in last 

year. The main reasons for this are: The management expenses of share-controlled subsidiary, 

Dandong Huanghai Company and Shuguang Auto Trading Company, covered those of the 

whole year in 2003, but the management expenses of Dandong Huanghai Company in 2002 

only covered those from December 2002 and the management expenses of Shuguang Auto 

Trading Company only covered those from August to December 2002, which resulted in an 

increase of management expenses of 57,680,355.76 RMB yuan. 

 

In addition, with the continuous enlargement of operation scale of the Company, there have been 

increases in the number of employees at management positions, expenses on salary for them, 

investments on new product development due to product requirement for market, and other 

expenses.  

 

3.6.36 Financial Expenses Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Interests payment       22,295,144.75     14,458,571.10  

Minus: income from interests        3,244,734.06      2,836,767.49  

Net payment of interests       19,050,410.69  11,621,803.61 

Exchange loss           13,358.50         38,257.94 

Minus: income from exchange                               7,494.11    

Commission fee          491,091.85        385,076.73  

Total       19,554,861.04   12,037,644.17  

 

The financial expenses in 2003 increased 7,517,216.87 RMB yuan by 62.45% compared with 

the same period in last year, primarily because the Company increased the bank loan in 2003, 

which increased the interest in correspondence. 

 

3.6.37 Investment income Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Income from equity investment   

Income from bonds investment                -1,702,517.67  

Profit from joint operation or joint venture    100,000.00          5,787.84  

Net change amount of equity of the company invested 4,002,015.88        753,833.03 

Amortization of equity investment difference -668,905.18       -294,544.94  

Depreciation reserve for long-term investment              

Total   3,343,110.70   -1,237,441.74  

 

The investment income in 2003 increased 4,580,552.44 RMB by 370.16% compared with the 

same period in last year, primarily because the Company got an investment income of 
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4,002,015.88 RMB yuan according to its investment proportion in Anhui Ankai Futian 

Shuguang Axle Company and Zhenjiang Fanwo Auto Components Co., Ltd. 

 

3.6.38 Subsidy income 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Refund of value-added tax 8,138,764.91 2,288,367.65 

Project interests   

Total 8,138,764.91 2,288,367.65 

 

According to Fengcheng Government document No.(1998) 7 ―Provision of Preferential Policy 

to Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co., Ltd.‖, the share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, 

Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. adopted the method of levy first and refund 

afterwards between January to November 2002. 25% of the VAT was refunded and 40% of the 

refunded VAT was used for the self-development of the Company. The amount of the refunded 

VAT received in 2003 for Year 2002 was 195,996.01 RMB yuan.  

 

The share-controlled subsidiary, Dandong Shuguang Special-Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd., is a 

social welfare company. According to the provision of document No. [1998] 21 issued by 

Liaoning National Taxation Bureau about the ―Transferred Notice by National Taxation Bureau 

on the Taxation for Civil Welfare Company‖, VAT of social welfare companies are levied first 

and 100% refunded afterwards. The total refunded VAT received in 2003 is 7,840,386.78 RMB 

yuan.  

 

According to Zhuzhengfa document No. [2002] 26, Preferential Policy on Introducing Foreign 

Investment, Zhucheng Financial Bureau awarded the share-controlled subsidiary of the 

Company, Zhucheng Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd., 172,764.91 RMB yuan as tax encouragement 

for 2002, among which award for VAT was 102,382.12 RMB yuan, and award for income tax 

was 70,382.79 RMB yuan. 

 

3.6.39 Income from non-operating activities 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Income from disposal of fixed assets 374,764.09 7,370.59 

Income from penalties 196,009.15 17,169.29 

Penalty for the breach of the contract 53,223.93  

Reparations from Insurance Company 35,242.00 80,827.17 

Contract rent expenses  15,169.92 

Refund of education surtax 83,260.37  

Others 131,163.12 14,398.00 

Total 873,662.66 134,934.97 
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3.6.40 Non-operating expenses 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Loss from the disposal of fixed assets    1,427,157.14        161,360.72  

Penalties         24,745.50         23,107.58  

Donations       301,685.63        125,699.81  

Loss from the reconsolidation of debt       227,831.99      1,294,418.46  

Depreciation reserve for fixed assets & in-process projects        -88,427.50         88,427.50  

Others       602,701.35          5,415.81  

Total 2,495,694.11 1,698,429.88 

 

3.7 Notes to the major accounts of the parent companyôs financial statements 

3.7.1 Accounts receivable Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 

Year end Year beginning 

Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt 

Within 1 year  56,238,388.58  92.75%    494,637.09  40,487,074.39  87.28% 385,530.97  

1-2 years     415,364.26  0.69%     41,536.43   4,727,130.64  10.19% 472,713.06  

2-3 years   1,878,567.05  3.10%    281,785.06     

More than 3 

years  
  2,104,490.24  3.46%    947,020.61   1,174,186.84  2.53% 234,837.37  

Total 60,636,810.13  100.00% 1,764,979.19 46,388,391.87  100.00% 1,093,081.40 

 

There are no liabilities from shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the 

Company‘s share equity among the remaining amount of the account receivable. 

 

The total accounts receivable from the top five creditors is 33,914,659.87 RMB yuan, 

accounting for 55.93% of the year-end balance of accounts receivable.  

 

Among the balance of accounts receivable, 6,550,296.69 RMB yuan shall be received from the 

share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Company. 

 

3.7.2 Other accounts receivable Unit: in RMB yuan 

Age 

Year end Year beginning 

Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt Amount Percentage Reserve for bad debt 

Within 1 year  1,690,973.22  65.82%    16,909.73  41,144,354.31  95.50%   52,219.04 

1-2 years                        54,000.00  0.12%   5,400.00  

2-3 years    54,000.00  2.10%    8,100.00     

More than 3 years   824,028.91  32.08%  368,313.01   1,886,695.56  4.38% 838,813.00 

Total 2,569,002.13  100.00%  393,322.74  43,085,049.87  100.00% 896,432.04 
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There are no liabilities from shareholders who hold more than 5% (including 5%) of the 

Company‘s share equity among the remaining amount of other accounts receivable. 

 

The year-end balance of other accounts receivable reduced 40,516,047.74 RMB yuan by 

94.04% compared with that in last period, primarily because the Company transferred the 

investment of 35,922,450.00 RMB yuan on technical innovation of axle shaft project of the 

share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Company, into 

long-term equity investment  

 

3.7.3 Long-term investment 

3.7.3.1 Investment items                                             Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 

Year beginning 
Increase in 

this period 

Decrease in 

this period 

Year end 

Amount 
Depreciation 

reserve 
Amount 

Depreciation 

reserve 

Long-term equity 

investment 
318,257,555.94   121,324,009.44 21,859,419.91 417,722,145.47  

Long-tern credit 

investment 
      

Total 318,257,555.94   121,324,009.44 21,859,419.91  417,722,145.47  

 

3.7.3.2 Long-term equity investment 

a. Stock share investment Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being invested Share class 
No. Of 

shares 

Percentage in invested 

company 

Investment 

amount 

Depreciation 

reserve 

Beijing Auto Futian Vehicle Co., ltd. Corporate shares 2.3 million 1.03% 5,000,000,00  

 

b. Other equity investment Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being invested 
Investment 

duration 

Percentage 

in invested 

company 

Investment 

amount 

Accounting 

method 

 Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd 30 years 51.00% 118,390,194.42  Equity method 

 Henan Shuguang Auto Brake Co., Ltd. 10 years 51.00% 61,952,755.06 Equity method  

 Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. Long-term 90.00% 58,197,791.09 Equity method  

 Shanghai Manhattan Investment Co., Ltd. 20 years 90.00% 45,969,119.53 Equity method 

 Shandong Rongcheng Shuguang Auto Gear Co. 10 years 67.00% 22,335,905.02 Equity method 

 Dandong Shuguang Auto Trading Co., Ltd. 15 years 95.00% 19,115,026.15 Equity method 

 Anhui Ankai Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. Long-term 30.00% 21,330,473.15 Equity method 

 Dandong Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Co. Long-term 90.00% 55,640,781.04  Equity method 

 Zhucheng Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. 10 years 57.50% 7,690,100.01 Equity method 
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 Beijing Futian Huanbaodongli Co., Ltd.  0.51% 2,000,000.00 Cost method 

 Beijing Xinrongxingye Investment Consult Co.   100,000.00 Cost method 

Total   412,722,145.47  

 

c. Other equity investment (equity method) Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being 

invested 

Initial 

investment 

Year 

beginning 

Increase in 

this period 
Dividend Year end 

Decreased/ 

Increased 

Accumulated 

equity 

Dandong Huanghai 

Automotive Co., Ltd. 
112,200,000.00  112,658,271.07    5,731,923.35                    118,390,194.42   6,190,194.42  

Henan Shuguang Auto 

Brake Co., Ltd. 
49,070,214.22   58,270,659.04    9,675,215.27    5,993,119.25  61,952,755.06  12,882,540.84  

Fengcheng Shuguang 

Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. 
 48,600,000.00    5,560,829.73    7,613,875.64    3,176,914.28   58,197,791.09   9,597,791.09  

Shanghai Manhattan 

Investment Co., Ltd. 
45,000,000.00   44,939,366.19  1,029,753.34  45,969,119.53   969,119.53  

Shandong Rongcheng 

Shuguang Auto Gear 

Co., Ltd. 

20,770,000.00   21,078,066.12    1,257,838.90    22,335,905.02   1,565,905.02  

Dandong Shuguang 

Auto Trading Co., Ltd. 
19,666,900.00   20,321,772.53       751,917.23    1,958,663.61  19,115,026.15    -551,873.85  

Anhui Ankai Futian 

Shuguang Axle Co., 

Ltd. 

 18,000,000.00   18,716,591.13    2,613,882.02    21,330,473.15   3,330,473.15  

Dandong Shuguang 

Special-purpose 

Vehicle Co., Ltd. 

 9,000,000.00   22,563,938.75   42,076,582.17    8,999,739.88   55,640,781.04  46,640,781.04  

Zhucheng Shuguang 

Axle Co., Ltd. 
 5,412,000.00    7,048,061.38    1,715,824.24   1,073,785.61    7,690,100.01   2,278,100.01  

Total 327,719,114.22 311,157,555.94 72,466,812.16 21,202,222.63 410,622,145.47 82,903,031.25 

 

On 20
th
 December 2002, the general shareholders meeting of Fengcheng Shuguang Axle 

Shaft Company approved and passed a resolution and agreed to increase its registered 

capital from 500,000.00 RMB to 36,500,000.00 RMB. The increased 36,000,000.00 RMB 

yuan would be invested by Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd. On 28
th
 September 

2003, the general shareholders meeting of Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Company 

approved and passed a resolution and agreed to increase its registered capital from 

36,500,000.00 RMB to 54,000,000.00 RMB, among which the investment of Liaoning SG 

Automotive Group Co., Ltd. increased from 36,400,000.00 RMB to 48,600,000.00 RMB, 
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accounting for 90% of the total registered capital. The accumulated and additional 

investment of the parent company on Fencheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Company in 2003 is 

48,200,000.00 RMB yuan. 

 

d. Investment on equity difference Unit: in RMB yuan 

Company being 

invested 

Initial 

investment 

Amortization 

duration 

Year 

beginning 

Amortization 

in this period 

Year end 

balance 

Reasons 

for 

difference 

Dandong Shuguang Auto 

Trading Co., Ltd. 
6,571,973.13  10 years 6,298,140.92   657,197.28  5,640,943.64 

Premium 

price 

investment 

Total 6,571,973.13   6,298,140.92   657,197.28  5,640,943.64  

 

3.7.4 Fixed assets  Unit: in RMB yuan 

Original value of fixed 

assets 
Year beginning Increase in this period Decrease in this year Year end 

Buildings     67,779,812.76    17,001,356.64                       84,781,169.40  

Universal equipments     76,961,950.31     16,021,860.46      433,006.46     92,550,804.31  

Transportation equipments      5,997,477.94         451,696.00        367,310.76      6,081,863.18  

Other equipments      2,095,998.89        595,814.99        212,504.50      2,479,309.38  

Total    152,835,239.90     34,070,728.09     1,012,821.72    185,893,146.27  

Accumulated depreciation     

Buildings     8,519,398.42      1,787,542.00                      10,306,940.42  

Universal equipments    20,520,830.31       3,972,548.49        506,451.87    23,986,926.93  

Transportation equipments     1,278,873.91         219,190.05        144,026.07     1,354,037.89  

Other equipments       990,184.37        364,636.10        190,552.16      1,164,268.31  

Total    31,309,287.01  6,343,916.64 841,030.10 36,812,173.55 

Net value of fixed assets    121,525,952.89    149,080,972.72  

Depreciation reserve for fixed assets 

Buildings        141,009.36          141,009.36  

Universal equipments        146,043.97          146,043.97  

Transportation equipments         88,901.37           88,901.37  

Other equipments         70,786.26           70,786.26  

Total        446,740.96          446,740.96  

Net value of fixed assets    121,079,211.93    148,634,231.76  

 

3.7.5 Income and costs from main operating activities Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 

2003 2002 

Income from main 

operating activities 

Costs from main 

operating activities 

Income from main 

operating activities 

Costs from main 

operating activities 

Axles 433,306,254.46    342,987,888.00  235,454,583.03   182,150,598.21 

Auto components     

Total 433,306,254.46    342,987,888.00  235,454,583.03   182,150,598.21 
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3.7.6 Income from investment Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items 2003 2002 

Income from share investment   

Income from bond investment         -1,702,517.67  

Net change of shareholder‘s equity of the invested company 72,249,660.32       26,735,613.02 

Profit distributed from joint operation or joint venture 

company 
        10,000.00           5,000.00  

Amortization of equity investment difference       -657,197.28        -273,832.21 

Depreciation reserve for long-term investment   

Total 71,602,463.04 24,764,263.14 

 

3.8 Related party relationships and transactions 

3.8.1 Related party relationships and transactions 

3.8.1.1 The related parties controlled by the Company 

Name of company Registered address Main businesses 

Relationship 

with the 

Company 

Nature or 

type of the 

company 

Company legal 

representative 

Dandong Shuguang 

Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 

Shuguang Road, 

Zhen'an District, 

Dandong, Liaoning 

Manufacturing and 

machining auto front & rear 

axles and common 

components 

Main initiator Co., Ltd. Li Haiyang 

Fengcheng Shuguang 

Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. 

Fengshan Road, 

Fengcheng 

Manufacturing auto 

components 
Subsidiary Co., Ltd. Li Xinglai 

Zhucheng Shuguang Axle 

Co., Ltd. 
Zhucheng, Shandong 

Manufacturing and 

machining auto front & rear 

axles and common 

components 

Subsidiary Co., Ltd Li Jindian 

Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd. 
Yuanyang County, 

Henan 

Production and sales of auto 

brakes and etc. 
Subsidiary Co., Ltd Li Jindian 

Shandong Rongcheng 

Shuguang Gear Co., Ltd. 

Rongcheng, 

Shandong 

Production and sales of auto 

gears 
Subsidiary Co., Ltd Li Jindian 

Dandong Shuguang 

Special Purpose Vehicle 

Co., Ltd. 

Shuguang Road, 

Zhen'an District, 

Dandong, Liaoning 

Production and sales of civil 

refitted vehicles 
Subsidiary Co., Ltd Liang Wenli 

Dandong Huanghai 

Automotive Co., Ltd. 

Huanghai Street, 

Zhenxing District, 

Dandong, Liaoning 

Manufacturing and sales of 

automobiles (excluding 

cars) and etc. 

Subsidiary Co., Ltd Li Jindian 

Dandong Shuguang Auto 

Trading Co., Ltd. 

Huayuan Road, 

Zhenxing District, 

Dandong, Liaoning 

Wholesale & retail 

automobiles, auto 

components and etc. 

Subsidiary Co., Ltd Yan Xiaoming 

Shanghai Manhattan 

Investment Co., Ltd. 

Zhangjiang 

High-Tech Zone, 

Shanghai 

Investment management, 

assets management and 

investment consultancy 

Subsidiary Co., Ltd Li jindian 



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 62 

 

3.8.1.2 The registered capital and its changes of the related parties controlled by the Company 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Name of company Dec.31, 2002 
Increase in 

this period 

Decrease in 

this period 
31

st
 Dec. 2003 

Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 96,000,000.00   96,000,000.00 

Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Co., Ltd. 500,000.00 53,500,000.00  54,000,000.00 

Zhucheng Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. 9,412,000.00   9,412,000.00 

Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd. 30,000,000.00   30,000,000.00 

Shandong Rongcheng Shuguang Gear Co., Ltd. 31,000,000.00   31,000,000.00 

Dandong Shuguang Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00   10,000,000.00 

Dandong Huanghai Automotive Co., Ltd. 220,000,000.00   220,000,000.00 

Dandong Shuguang Auto Trading Co., Ltd. 11,800,000.00   11,800,000.00 

Shanghai Manhattan Investment Co., Ltd. 50,000,000.00   50,000,000.00 

 

3.8.1.3  The shares or equity held by the related parties controlled by the Company and their 

changes  

Un it: in RMB yuan 

Name of company 
Year beginning Increase in this period Decrease in this period Year end 

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Dandong Shuguang 

Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 
6,975.00 43.06%     6,975.00 43.06% 

Fengcheng Shuguang Axle 

Shaft Co., Ltd 
40.00 80.00% 4,820.00 10.00%   4,860.00 90.00% 

Zhucheng Shuguang Axle 

Co., Ltd. 
541.20 57.50%     541.20 57.50% 

Henan Auto Brake Co., Ltd. 1,530.00 51.00%     1,530.00 51.00% 

Shandong Ronmgcheng Gear 

Co., Ltd. 
2,077.00 67.00%     2,077.00 67.00% 

Dandong Shuguang Special 

Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. 
900.00 90.00%     900.00 90.00% 

Dandong Huanghai 

Automotive Co., Ltd. 
11,220.00 51.00%     11,220.00 51.00% 

Dandong Shuguang Auto 

Trading Co., Ltd. 
1,121.00 95.00%     1,121.00 95.00% 

Shanghai Manhattan 

Investment Co., Ltd. 
4,500.00 90.00%     4,500.00 90.00% 

 



 

LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 63 

3.8.2 Nature of related parties not controlled by the Company 

Name of company Relationship with the Company 

Anhui Ankai Futian Shuguang Axle Co., Ltd. 30% of its share capital is held by the Company. 

Dandong Shuguang Auto Components Co., Ltd. The parent company of this company is the same as the Company. 

Liaoning Huanghai Automotive Group Co., Ltd. This company is the 2nd shareholder of Dandong Huanghai Company. 

 

3.8.3 Transactions between related parties and the Company 

All the transactions between the related parties and the Company are accounted according to 

the relevant national regulations and at the public-admitted market price. 

 

3.8.3.1 Related events 

a. Providing guarantee 

Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. made the joint liability guarantee for the 

115,000,000.00 RMB yuan short-term loans and the 35,000,000.00 RMB yuan long-term loans 

for the Company on 31
st
 Dec. 2003. 

 

On 31
st
 Dec. 2003, the Company provided guarantee for the 3,000,000.00 RMB yuan bank 

loan for Shuguang Auto Trading Company; and the 13,000,000.00 RMB yuan bank loan for 

Fengcheng Shuguang Axle Shaft Company.  

 

The joint liability guarantee for the 30,000,000.00 RMB yuan short-term loans of the Company 

on 31
st
 Dec 2003 was made by Huanghai Group Company. 

 

b. Sales of products  

The Company sold axles and components worth 2,971,686.40 RMB yuan to Dandong Shuguang 

Auto Components Co., Ltd. in 2003.  

 

The Company sold brakes worth 3,109,788.74 RMB to Anhui Ankai Futian Shuguang Axle Co., 

Ltd. in 2003. 

 

c. Housing lease and the chartered using right 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Huanghai Company, signed the 

housing lease contract with Huanghai Group Company. Huanghai Group Company agreed to 

let the total existing 167187m
2
 housings such as workshops and office buildings to Dandong 

Huanghai Company, with the rental fee of 4,800,000.00 RMB yuan per year paid annually. 

This standard of rental fee is temporarily agreed to remain unchanged for 3 years. 

 

The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Huanghai Company, signed the 

contract on the lease of land tenure with Huanghai Group Company. Huanghai Group 

Company agreed to let the total existing 415306.74m
2
 area of land tenure it owned to Dandong 

Huanghai Company, with the rental fee of 4,000,000.00 RMB yuan per year paid annually. 

This standard of rental fee is temporarily agreed to remain unchanged for 3 years.  
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The share-controlled subsidiary of the Company, Dandong Huanghai Company, signed an 

agreement on trademark license with Huanghai Group Company. Huanghai Group Company 

agreed to grant Dandong Huanghai Company the using right of ―Huanghai‖ trademark on the 

production and sales of the CBU of buses, coaches and trucks, chassis and related auto 

components. The trademark license fee is at 800,000.00 RMB per year paid annually. 

Furthermore, Huanghai Group Company agreed to transfer its ―Huanghai‖ trademark to 

Dandong Huanghai Company free of charge after 3 years. If Dandong Huanghai Company 

establishes a joint venture company with a foreign partner or prepares to be promoted into the 

capitalized market within 3 years, Huanghai Group Company will  transfer the ownership of 

―Huanghai‖ trademark in time free of charge to Dandong Huanghai Company. 

 

3.8.3.2 The balance of accounts receivable and payable of the related parties 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

Items Related parties Dec.31, 2003 Dec.31, 2002 

Accounts receivable Dandong Shuguang Auto Components Co., Ltd 894,931.01  

Other accounts receivable Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.  1,357,255.66 

Other accounts receivable Liaoning Huanghai Automotive Group Co., Ltd. 13,333,111.19  

Dividend payable Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd.  242,596.93 

Other accounts payable Dandong Shuguang Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. 463,087.91  

 

3.9 Contingency 

Among other accounts receivable, 814,028.91 RMB shall be received from Bolaily Company of 

USA. In 1996, the Company signed an agreement with Bolaily on setting up a joint venture 

company. Because the foreign party did not pay the capital fund within the required period, 

instead, it retained the fund for equipment purchase paid by the Company for self-use and 

refused to pay it back, the Company appealed to China International Economic and Trade 

Arbitration Commission on 7
th
 Jan. 1997. On 3

rd
 Dec. 1997, China International Economic and 

Trade Arbitration Commission made the final arbitration that Bolialy Company broke the 

contract and should pay back and reimburse USD 435,257.00 and RMB358,700.00 in total to the 

Company. On 9
th
 Jun. 1998, Bolaily Company requested Beijing the Second Intermediate 

People‘s Court to withdraw the arbitration, but was refused. On 26
th
 Apr. 1999, the Company 

requested Beijing the First Intermediate People‘s Court to execute of the arbitration. Due to 

unsatisfactory execution, the Company appealed to the Regional Court California North 

Sub-Branch in USA. On 23
rd
 Oct. 2001, both parties reached a reconciliation agreement on the 

case. According to the reconciliation agreement, Bolaily Gear Company should finish the 

repayment before 31
st
 Dec. 2003. By the end of 31

st
 Dec. 2003, there has been RMB 814,028.91 

yuan unpaid yet. 

 

3.10 Commitment 

The Company has had no important commitments to disclose by 31
st
 Dec.31 2003. 

 

3.11 Events after Balance Sheet 

3.11.1. The Company has signed equity transfer agreement with Zhejiang Wanxiang System 

Co., Ltd. The agreement stipulates that the Company transfers the 51% equity of Henan 
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Brake Company it owns to Zhejiang Wanxiang System Co., Ltd. The intended transfer 

price is 72 million RMB yuan. The 5
th
 session of 4

th
 Board Meeting of the Company 

approved and passed this resolution. This resolution still needs to be approved and 

passed by the general shareholders meeting in 2003. 

 

3.11.2. According to 2003 annual profit distribution plan made by the 5
th
 session of 4

th
 Board 

Meeting held on 27
th
 Feb. 2004 of the Company, on basis of the total 162 million 

shares on Dec.31, 2003, the Company distributed a dividend of 3 RMB yuan for every 

10 shares (social public shares include personal income tax). The total dividends 

distributed are 48.6 million RMB yuan. This distribution proposal still needs to be 

approved and passed by the general shareholders meeting of 2003.  

 

3.12 Other important  events 

By the end of 31
st
 Dec. 2003, the Company has had no other important events to disclose. 

 

3.13 Net assets income rate and earnings per share 

Profit in this period  

Net assets income rate Earnings per share 

Overall diluted Weighted average Overall diluted Weighted average 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

Profit from main operating 

activities 
73.63% 31.95% 79.03% 32.17% 2.43 0.93 2.43 0.93 

Operating profit 26.53% 13.45% 28.48% 13.54% 0.88 0.39 0.88 0.39 

Net profit 17.54% 7.85% 18.82% 7.90% 0.58 0.23 0.58 0.23 

Net profit after deducting 

non-current profit and loss 
17.44% 8.44% 18.72% 8.49% 0.58 0.25 0.58 0.25 

 

The non-current gain/loss items and amounts are as follows: 

Unit: in RMB yuan 

 Items 2003 2002 

 Profit and loss from the disposal of fixed assets -1,052,393.05  -153,990.13 

 Various government subsidies 381,638.50   

 Profit and loss from short-term investment  -1,702,517.67 

 Income from non-operating activities 415,638.20  127,564.38 

 Expenses for non-operating activities -929,132.48  -242,650.70 

 Return back of previous accumulated reserve  2,435,520.60   

 Profit and loss from debt reconsolidation -227,831.99  -1,294,418.46 

 Influence of tax -489,725.71 501,727.82 

 Total 533,714.07 -2,764,284.76 
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Chapter 11 Contents of Documents Available for Reference 

I. The financial statements are signed and stamped by the legal representative, financial 

supervisor and accountants. 

II. The original copy of the auditor‘s report is stamped by the accounting firm and signed and 

stamped by the certified public accountants. 

III.  All the original copies and drafts of all documents on the Company are disclosed in China 

Securities Daily and Shanghai Securities Daily within the report period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Liaoning SG Automotive Group Co., Ltd. 

 

Chairman: Mr. Li Jindian 

 

27
th
 Feb. 2004 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
LIAONING SHUGUANG AUTOMOTIVE GROUP CO., LTD.               2003 ANNUAL REPORT 

 1 

Unit: in RMB yuan

Assets Notes Consolidation Parent company Consolidation Parent company

Current assets:

 Cash 1 408,194,060.79       93,049,418.37       232,881,356.98       78,160,749.62

 Short-term investment 2 -                           -                         -                          -                      

 Notes receivable 2 303,109,617.07       146,905,104.56     140,419,982.00       79,296,165.00

 Dividend receivable -                           -                         -                          -                      

 Interest receivable -                           -                         -                          -                      

 Accounts receivable 3 317,362,066.66       58,871,830.94       316,345,070.38       45,295,310.47

 Other accounts receivable 4 29,065,950.83         2,175,679.39         26,198,776.03         42,188,617.83

 Accounts prepaid 5 96,178,095.39         21,963,226.20       68,589,266.67         18,304,692.19

  Subsidy receivable -                           -                         -                          -                      

  Inventory 6 404,412,197.50       40,510,614.18       310,135,147.83       36,924,375.10

  Amortization 7 249,503.37              -                         -                          -                      

                             - -                         -                          -                      

  Other current assets -                           -                         -                          -                      

  Total current assets 1,558,571,491.61    363,475,873.64     1,094,569,599.89    300,169,910.21   

Long-term investment̔

   Long-term equity investment 8 43,305,210.63         417,722,145.47     40,478,316.41         318,257,555.94

  Long-term bonds investment -                           -                         -                          -                      

  Total long-term investment 43,305,210.63         417,722,145.47     40,478,316.41         318,257,555.94

    Of which̔ consolidation of price

difference
8 5,724,389.86           6,298,140.92           

Fixed assets:

 Original value of fixed assets 9 591,819,900.91       185,893,146.27     511,178,735.76 152,835,239.90

 Minus: accumulated depreciation 9 186,416,619.91       36,812,173.55       157,479,329.49 31,309,287.01

  Net value of fixed assets 405,403,281.00       149,080,972.72     353,699,406.27 121,525,952.89

Minus: depreciation reserve 620,428.07              446,740.96            620,428.07 446,740.96

  Net value of fixed assets 404,782,852.93       148,634,231.76     353,078,978.20 121,079,211.93

  Project materials & supplies -                           -                         -                          -                      

   In-process project 10 39,907,026.07         19,449,593.77       10,890,948.70 3,645,773.51

  Fixed assets disposal -                           -                         -                          -                      

  Total fixed assets 444,689,879.00       168,083,825.53     363,969,926.90       124,724,985.44   

Intangible and other assets̔

  Intangible assets 11 40,509,520.48         25,001,954.11       42,577,883.32 25,543,196.29

  Long-term amortization 12 1,479,324.79           1,036,974.80         1,054,130.33 505,047.00

  Other long-term assets -                           -                         -                          -                      

Total intangible & other assets 41,988,845.27         26,038,928.91       43,632,013.65         26,048,243.29     

Deferred taxes̔

  Deferred tax amount -                           -                         -                          -                      

  Total assets 2,088,555,426.51    975,320,773.55     1,542,649,856.85    769,200,694.88   

Legal representative̔

Balance sheet
Drawn up by̔Liaoning Shuguang Automotive Group Co., Ltd.

Drawn by̔

Dec.31, 2002Dec.31, 2003

Chief Accountant̔

   Long-term bonds investment due in 1 year
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Unit: in RMB yuan

Liabilities and shareholders' equityNotes Consolidation Parent company Consolidation Parent company

 Current liabilities̔

    Short-term borrowing 13 281,966,020.00          115,000,000.00     225,606,380.00        115,000,000.00

    Notes payable 14 325,731,000.17          114,015,904.59     130,872,794.59        64,681,063.00

    Accounts payable 15 533,270,465.04          125,768,474.97     372,313,154.82        81,810,183.75

    Advance receipts 16 36,049,604.04            3,414,250.30         25,534,361.17          1,129,213.51

    Salary payable 17 5,328,882.77              -                         -                           -

    Welfare payable 15,617,270.29            3,477,431.81         13,214,153.03          3,296,165.36

    Dividend payable 18 -                             -                         242,596.93               -

    Taxes payable 19 12,874,876.77            4,826,928.04         8,455,276.24            896,705.27

    Other accounts payable 20 593,940.47                 152,031.09            286,191.12               -25,313.81

    Other accounts payable 21 45,932,044.07            3,025,279.83         26,430,717.05          8,506,811.06

    Withholding fees 22 9,068,515.64              2,713,215.64         5,197,412.87            134,924.80

    Predicted liabilities -                             -                         -                           -

    Long-term liabilities due in 1 year23 11,000,000.00            -                         62,058,306.45          20,375,546.45

    Other current liabilities -                             -                         -                           -

    Total current liabilities 1,277,432,619.26       372,393,516.27     870,211,344.27        295,805,299.39        

Long-term liabilities̔

  Long-term borrowing 24 68,301,421.45            56,301,421.45       13,860,000.00          -

  Bonds payable -                             -                         -                           -

  Long-term accounts payable -                             -                         -                           -

  Special accounts payable 25 9,617,052.00              6,960,000.00         2,657,052.00            -

  Other long-term liabilities -                             -                         -                           -

  Total long-term liabilities 77,918,473.45            63,261,421.45       16,517,052.00          -

Deferred taxes̔

  Deferred tax accounts -                             -                         - -

  Total liabilities 1,355,351,092.71       435,654,937.72     886,728,396.27 295,805,299.39

Minority shareholders' equity 198,153,362.83          183,184,897.67

Shareholders' equity̔

  Share capital 26 162,000,000.00          162,000,000.00     162,000,000.00 162,000,000.00

  Minus:returned investment -                             -                         0.00

  Net value of share capital 162,000,000.00          162,000,000.00     162,000,000.00        162,000,000.00        

  Capital reserve fund 27 235,856,790.45          235,856,790.45     234,982,441.33 234,982,441.33

  Surplus reserve fund 28 55,206,658.23            35,159,928.51       28,524,701.12 20,490,514.83

    Of which̔ public welfare fund 15,963,286.01            9,828,565.52         7,616,823.05 4,938,760.96

  Undistributed profit 29 81,987,522.29            106,649,116.87     47,229,420.46 55,922,439.33

     Of which̔ intended distributed

cash dividend
48,600,000.00            48,600,000.00       32,400,000.00 32,400,000.00

  Total shareholders' equity 535,050,970.97          539,665,835.83     472,736,562.91        473,395,395.49        

 Total liabilities and share-holders'

equity
2,088,555,426.51       975,320,773.55     1,542,649,856.85     769,200,694.88        

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

Drawn by: Liaoning Shuguang Automotive Group Co., Ltd.

Drawn by:

Dec.31, 2002Dec.31, 2003

Chief accountant:Legal representative:
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Item Notes Consolidation Parent company Consolidation Parent company

1. Income from main operating activities 30 2,207,978,274.94  433,306,254.46  672,580,247.63  235,454,583.03  

Minus:costs from main operating activities 31 1,796,239,227.08  342,987,888.00  518,153,227.34  182,150,598.21  

          tax and surplus from main operating activities 32 17,768,344.76       2,265,169.94      3,375,770.75      1,319,330.87      

2. Profit from main operating activities 393,970,703.10     88,053,196.52    151,051,249.54  51,984,653.95    

Plus̔ profit from other businesses 33 8,297,147.19         4,169,335.54      1,515,422.22      1,519,658.64      

Minus̔ operating costs 34 121,609,742.07     16,232,918.28    33,058,392.44    9,414,869.12      

            management expenses 35 119,147,460.07     29,508,000.86    43,890,255.92    17,447,360.28    

            financial expenses 36 19,554,861.04       6,873,339.38      12,037,644.17    7,196,967.35      

3. Operating profit 141,955,787.11     39,608,273.54    63,580,379.23    19,445,115.84    

Plus̔ investment income 37 3,343,110.70         71,602,463.04    -1,237,441.74     24,764,263.14    

          subsidy income 38 8,138,764.91         -                      2,288,367.65      -                      

          income from non-operating activities 39 873,662.66            13,555.02           134,934.97         15,368.59           

Minus̔ non-operating costs 40 2,495,694.11         376,368.13         1,698,429.88      128,723.52         

4. Total profit 151,815,631.27     110,847,923.47  63,067,810.23    44,096,024.05    

Minus̔ income tax 36,468,699.18       13,051,832.25    16,583,031.87    6,319,530.51      

    Minus̔ minority shareholders' equity 21,506,873.15       9,367,117.40      

5. Net profit 93,840,058.94       97,796,091.22    37,117,660.96    37,776,493.54    

Plus: profit retained at year-beginning 14,829,420.46       23,522,439.33    19,784,316.19    23,812,419.82    

       others transferred in -                         -                      -                      -                      

6. Profit available to be distributed 108,669,479.40     121,318,530.55  56,901,977.15    61,588,913.36    

Minus:retained legal surplus reserve fund 16,692,925.90       9,779,609.12      6,448,371.12      3,777,649.35      

           retained legal public welfare fund 8,346,462.95         4,889,804.56      3,224,185.57      1,888,824.68      

           retained employee award and welfare fund -                         -                      -                      -                      

           retained reserve fund -                         -                      -                      -                      

           reatined company development fund -                         -                      -                      -                      

           investment return from profit -                         -                      -                      -                      

7. Profit to be distributed to shareholders 83,630,090.55       106,649,116.87  47,229,420.46    55,922,439.33    

Minus: dividend payable for priority share -                         -                      -                      -                      

            retained free surplus public fund 1,642,568.26         -                      -                      -                      

            dividend payable for ordinary shares 48,600,000.00       48,600,000.00    32,400,000.00    32,400,000.00    

            share capital transferred from ordinary shares -                         -                      -                      -                      

8. Profit retained 33,387,522.29       58,049,116.87    14,829,420.46    23,522,439.33    

Legal representative: Drawn by:Chief accountant:

Profit and profit distribution

Dec.31, 2002Dec.31, 2003

Drawn by: Liaoning Shuguang Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Unit: in RMB yuan
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Drawn by: Liaoning Shuguang Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Unit: in RMB yuan

Item

Consolidation Parent company

1. Cash flow from operating activities

     Cash received from sales of goods and provision of labor 2,036,137,375.31            347,230,354.51          

     Tax refunded 10,226,412.15                 -                             

     Other cash received from relevant operating activities 29,557,072.00                 5,120,939.65              

Cash inflow subtotal 2,075,920,859.46            352,351,294.16          

     Cash paid for commodities and labor 1,379,168,308.97            235,814,483.10          

     Cash paid to  and for employees 118,404,890.50               24,271,278.32            

     Various taxes paid 166,136,724.72               33,431,629.59            

     Other cash paid for relevant operating activities 139,396,627.21               25,385,659.24            

Cash outflow subtotal 1,803,106,551.40            318,903,050.25          

     Net value of cash flow from operating activities 272,814,308.06               33,448,243.91            

 2. Cash flow from investment activities:

     Cash received from the withdrawn investment -                                  -                             

     Cash received from investment income 10,000.00                        21,158,222.63            

     Net cash  received from the disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets

and other long-term assets
204,915.45                      202,215.45                 

    Cash received from other  activities relevant to investment 245,402.74                      -                             

Cash inflow subtotal 460,318.19                      21,360,438.08            

     Cash paid for purchasing fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-

term assets
107,410,054.75               38,395,125.77            

     Cash paid for investment 500,000.00                      10,603,220.00            

     Cash paid for other activities relevant to investment -                                  -                             

Cash outflow subtotal 107,910,054.75               48,998,345.77            

     Net value of cash flow from investment activities -107,449,736.56             -27,637,907.69          

 3. Cash flow from fund-raising activities̔

     Cash received from investment -                                  -                             

     Cash received through borrowing 360,104,666.73               200,000,000.00          

     Cash received from other activities relevant to fund-raising 6,960,000.00                   6,960,000.00              

Cash inflow subtotal 367,064,666.73               206,960,000.00          

     Cash paid for debt repayment 304,767,612.62               165,000,000.00          

     Cash paid for the distribution of dividends, profit and interests 52,348,921.80                 32,881,667.47            

     Cash paid for other activities relevant to fund-raising -                                  -                             

Cash outflow subtotal 357,116,534.42               197,881,667.47          

     Net value of cash flow from fund-raising activities 9,948,132.31                   9,078,332.53              

 4. Amount of exchange rate fluctuation

 5. Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 175,312,703.81               14,888,668.75            

Legal representative̔                                          Chief accountant  ̔                     Drawn by̔

Dec.31, 2003.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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Drawn by: Liaoning Shuguang Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Unit: in RMB yuan

Additional documents̔

Consolidation Parent company

 1.Adjust net profit as cash flow of operating activities:

Net profit 93,840,058.94            97,796,091.22           

Plus: minority shareholders' equity 21,506,873.15            -                            

Plus: Retained assets depreciation reserve 1,003,380.34              168,788.49                

Depreciation of fixed assets 33,709,312.03            7,738,537.17             

Amortization of intangible assets 3,036,162.84              541,242.18                

Amortization of long-term expenses 420,959.87                 297,893.20                

Reduce of amortization (minus: plus) -249,503.37                -                            

Increase of withholding feêminus̔ reducẽ 3,871,102.77              2,578,290.84             

Loss from the disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-

term assetŝ minus̔ incomẽ
797,189.52                 6,240.11                    

Loss from discarded fixed assets 255,203.53                 163,573.00                

Financial expenses 19,554,861.04            6,873,339.38             

Investment losŝ minus̔ incomẽ -3,343,110.70             -71,602,463.04         

Deferred tax ̂ minus̔ debits̃ -                              -                            

Decrease of inventorŷminus̔ increasẽ -95,482,046.53           -3,586,239.08           

Decrease of operating items receivablêminus̔ increasẽ -182,587,260.33         -82,340,386.38         

Increase of operating items payablêminus̔ decreasẽ 376,481,124.96          74,813,336.82           

Others -                              -                            

Net value of cash flow from operating activities 272,814,308.06          33,448,243.91           

 2.Investing and fund-raising activities not involving cash income and

expenditure:

Debt transfer into capital

Transferable company bond due in 1 year -                              -                            

Fixed assets from financial lease -                              -                            

 3. Net increase of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash surplus at year end 408,194,060.79          93,049,418.37           

Minus̔ cash surplus at year beginning 232,881,356.98          78,160,749.62           

Plus̔ cash equivalents surplus at year end -                              -                            

Minus̔ cash equivalents surplus at year beginning -                              -                            

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 175,312,703.81          14,888,668.75           

Legal representative̔                                            Chief  accountant̔                     Drawn by̔

Dec.31, 2003.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT ̂CONTINUED̃

 

 


